
Agenda
City of Fort Atkinson 

City Manager’s Office 
101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
IN PERSON AND VIA ZOOM 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2022 – 7:00 PM 
CITY HALL – SECOND FLOOR 

If you have special needs or circumstances which may make communication or accessibility difficult at 
the meeting, please call (920) 397-9901.  Accommodations will, to the fullest extent possible, be made 

available on request by a person with a disability. 

AGENDA 

1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call

3. Public Hearing – None

4. Public Comment: The City Council will receive comments from City residents. Comments
are generally limited to three minutes per individual. Anyone wishing to speak is required
to sign up in advance or state the following items for the record when called upon:
name, address, subject matter, and contact information. No action will be taken on any
public comments unless the item is also elsewhere on the agenda.

5. Consent Agenda: The Consent Agenda outlined below is hereby presented for action by
the City Council. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda on the request of any
one Council member. Items not removed may be adopted by one action without debate.
Removed items may be taken up either immediately after the Consent Agenda or placed
later on the agenda at the discretion of the Council President.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5997866403?pwd=alcreldSbGpNUVI1VnR1RWF5bXovdz09 
Meeting ID: 599 786 6403 

Passcode: 53538 

Dial by Location 
+1 312 626 6799

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5997866403?pwd=alcreldSbGpNUVI1VnR1RWF5bXovdz09


a. Review and possible action relating to the minutes of the November 15, 2022 
regular Fort Atkinson City Council meeting (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance 
Director) 

b. Review and possible action relating to the minutes of the November 15, 2022 
Police and Fire Commission meeting (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 

c. Review and possible action relating to the minutes of the November 17, 2022 
Sex Offender Residence Board meeting (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance 
Director) 

d. Review and possible action relating to the minutes of the November 22, 2022 
regular Plan Commission meeting (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 

e. Review and possible action on the appointment of Loren Gray to the Plan 
Commission (LeMire, City Manager) 

f. Review and possible action on a Special Event: Fort Atkinson Drift Skippers 
Snowmobile Club request to use snowmobile trails through the Klement 
Business Park for the 2022-2023 season (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance 
Director) 
 

6. Petitions, Requests, and Communications – None 
 

7. Resolutions and Ordinances – None 
 

8. Reports of Officers, Boards, and Committees: 
 

a. City Manager’s Report (LeMire, City Manager)  
 

9. Unfinished Business – None 
 

10. New Business: 
 

a. Review and possible action relating to 2023 Small Animal Collection Contract 
with the Humane Society of Jefferson County (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance 
Director) 

b. Review and possible action relating to the approval of EMS Billing Contract for 
the Fire Department (Rausch, Fire Chief) 

c. Review and possible action relating to a Public Monument Review for 
installation of a kayak launch located on the municipal boat launch (Selle, City 
Engineer/Director of Public Works) 

d. Review and possible action related to Emergency Replacement and Rebuild of 
Digester Blower #2 at the Wastewater Utility (Christensen, Wastewater 
Superintendent) 

e. Review and possible action relating to Septage Pump #1 and Associated Piping 
Replacement at the Wastewater Utility (Christensen, Wastewater 
Superintendent) 



f. Review and possible action relating to a Certified Survey Map for the property 
located at 309 Bluff St., City of Fort Atkinson (CSM-2022-08) (Selle, City 
Engineer/Director of Public Works) 

 
11. Miscellaneous – None 

 
12. Claims, Appropriations and Contract Payments: 

 
a. Review and possible action relating to the Verified Claims presented by the 

Director of Finance and authorization of payment (Ebbert, 
Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 

 
13. The City Council may consider a motion to convene in closed session pursuant to State 

Stat. §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchasing of public properties  
 

14. The City Council may continue in closed session pursuant to State Stat. §19.85(1)(e) to 
conduct other specified public business where competitive reasons require a closed 
session [to negotiate a Taxi Service Contract] 
 

15. Adjournment 
 
Date Posted: December 2, 2022 
 
CC: City Council; City Staff; City Attorney; News Media; Fort Atkinson School District; Fort Atkinson 
Chamber of Commerce 
 
Visit us online! City news and information can be found at www.fortatkinsonwi.gov, and be sure to 
follow us on Facebook @FortAtkinsonWI. 
 
Note the City’s new .gov domain name and new phone numbers. Visit our website for more 
information.  
 
 
 
 

http://www.fortatkinsonwi.gov/


Agenda
City of Fort Atkinson 

City Clerk/Treasurer’s 
Office 101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
IN PERSON AND VIA ZOOM 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2022 – 7:00 PM 
CITY HALL – SECOND FLOOR 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
President Scherer called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.

2. ROLL CALL
Present: Cm. Becker, Cm. Hartwick, Cm. Johnson, Cm. Schultz and President Scherer. Also
present: City Manager, City Attorney, City Engineer, City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director,
Police Chief, Wastewater Superintendent, Building Inspector, Library Director, Public Works
Superintendent, Public Works Supervisor and Park & Recreation Director.

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS – NONE

4. PUBLIC COMMENT:
Joe Grams 414 Zida Street – wanted to lodge complaints about Haumerson’s Pond.  He has
increased traffic down his street, loud music from cars traveling on the street to and from the
park.  He asked about light pollution laws that cause interference with the enjoyment of his
property. Inquired when the trees would be planted that provides a shield from headlights. He
also has concerned for cars being parked on the grass on the street.

5. CONSENT AGENDA:
a) Review and possible action relating to the minutes of the November 1, 2022 regular City

Council meeting (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director)
b) Review and possible action relating to the minutes of the November 1, 2022 Joint Review

Board meeting (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director)
c) Review and possible action relating to building, plumbing, and electrical permit report for

October 2022 (Draeger, Building Inspector/Zoning Administrator)
d) Review and possible action relating to the City Clerk-issued License and Permit Report for

October 2022 (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director)
e) City Sewer, Water, and Stormwater Utility Financial Statements as of October 31, 2022

(Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director)
f) Review and possible action relating to Special Event: Santa Cycle Rampage, December 3,

12:30-2 p.m., starting at Madison College and ending at the Farmer’s Market parking lot
(Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director)



g) Review and possible action relating to Special Event: Holiday Market & Open House and 
Trolley & Carriage Rides, December 3, 2022 9 a.m.-3 p.m. located inside three churches and 
the Fort Atkinson Club (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 

h) Review and possible action relating to Special Event: Holiday Market Food Truck Court, 
December 3, 2022, 2 p.m.-7 p.m. located in the Market Square Parking Lot and Merchants 
Ave. from Milwaukee Ave. to S. Third St. (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 

i) Review and possible action relating to Special Event: Magic on Janesville Avenue, December 
9, 2022, 3-6:30 p.m. located on Janesville Avenue bike path in front of Jones Dairy Farm 
heading north toward Rotary Depot Pavilion (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 

j) Review and possible action to change the Council Appointment to the Economic 
Development Commission from Mason Becker to Bruce Johnson for the remainder of the 
2022-2023 appointment year (Scherer, Council President) 

k) Review and possible action to change the Council Appointment to the Library Board from 
Bruce Johnson to Mason Becker for the remainder of the 2022-2023 appointment year 
(Scherer, Council President) 

Cm. Becker moved, seconded by Cm. Schultz to approve the Consent Agenda as listed, items 
5.a. through 5.k. Motion carried.  
 
6. PETITIONS, REQUESTS, AND COMMUNICATIONS: 
a) Presentation relating to the Concept Plans and Cost Estimates of a new City of Fort Atkinson 
Public Works Operations Facility (Williamson, Public Works Superintendent) 
Public Works Superintendent explained the existing Public Works Operations facility that is 
more than 50 years old and has surpassed its useful life. This fact led the Council to approve a 
full campus facility evaluation and study, originally prepared in 2017, and a current 2022 
existing facility review and concept plans for two locations owned by the City. The City Council, 
at the June 21, 2022 meeting, approved the submitted bid proposal from Engberg Anderson 
Architects for the planning and preparation of two Public Works Facility Concept Plans. The 
plans were prepared to allow for proper evaluation of the Existing Facility Campus, and the 
Loeb Lorman Site, for area, location and anticipated facility design criteria. The plans and 
estimated costs breakdowns attached are the culmination of the efforts of both City Staff and 
Engberg Anderson Architects.  
 
The current location of the DPW Facility Campus includes a detail with an aerial photo 
containing the proposed facility details superimposed onto it. This detail gives the viewer an 
idea of the size, positional layout and scope of what a modern facility would look like located on 
the existing location, with the added ability to see the existing buildings, pavements and 
surroundings.  
 
Possible Development Schedule: 

• Design to take place in 2023 
• Facility ground breaking and construction 2024 

 
The current existing facility campus location will need to remain in operation should the City 
determine this location suits the need for reconstruction of the proposed facility. The 



reconstruction timeline can be compressed to the next two years and may alleviate the need 
for more costly repairs to the existing building. This compression would require design to take 
place in 2023 and allow for ground breaking and construction in 2024.  
 
The City Council will review this matter again at the meeting on December 20, 2022.  
No action was taken.  
 
b) Quarterly Extra-Territorial CSM update (Selle, City Engineer/Director of Public Works) 
Engineer Selle reminded the approval at the December 18, 2018 City Council meeting, for the 
City Manager and City Engineer to approve Extra-Territorial Surveys that were within a 1.5 to 3 
mile radius of the City limits and not require that they be presented to the Plan Commission for 
review. Staff did approve one extra-territorial survey that was within the 1.5 to 3 mile radius of 
the City limits in the second and third quarter of 2022. 
 
No action required. 
 
7. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 
a) Review and possible action relating to a Resolution Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget and 
Setting the Property Tax Levy for the City of Fort Atkinson, Jefferson County, Wisconsin (LeMire, 
City Manager) 
Cm. Hartwick moved, seconded by Cm. Johnson to approve the resolution adopting the 2023 
Annual Budget and Setting the Property Tax Levy for the City of Fort Atkinson, Jefferson County, 
Wisconsin. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
b) Review and possible action relating to a Resolution Confirming the Total Levy for Taxing 
Jurisdictions in the City of Fort Atkinson and Determining the Mill Rate (LeMire, City Manager) 
Cm. Becker moved, seconded by Cm. Hartwick to approve the resolution confirming the total 
levy for Taxing Jurisdictions in the City of Fort Atkinson and Determining the Mill Rate. Motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
c) Review and possible action relating to a Resolution establishing the 2023 Schedule of Fees for 
the City of Fort Atkinson, Jefferson County, Wisconsin (LeMire, City Manager) 
Cm. Hartwick moved, seconded by Cm. Schultz to approve the resolution establishing the 2023 
Schedule of Fees for the City of Fort Atkinson, Jefferson County, Wisconsin. Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
8. REPORTS OF OFFICERS, BOARDS, AND COMMITTEES: 
a) City Manager’s Report (LeMire, City Manager)  
No action required. 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – NONE 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS: 



a) Review and possible action related to Wastewater Utility – Phase II Improvements Project 
Change Order 8 and project update (Christensen, Wastewater Utility Superintendent) 
Wastewater Superintendent discuss change order 8 which is an accumulation of changes and 
credits. As of November 2022 – the project has enacted formal changes totaling $336,914. This 
proposed change includes both additive and deductive items. These items are grouped below, 
including reconciliation of project allowances – returning funds to the project budget dollar-for-
dollar.  
 
Enacted Changes  $336,914.00 
Proposed Adders  $103,055.00 
Proposed Deducts  ($96,330.00) 
Net Projected Changes $343,639.00 
 
Inclusion of this proposed change order along with all other pending changes results in a net 
addition to the project of $343,639. The beginning balance of the project contingency was 
$669,250. The remaining value of the contingency is $325,611, or about 48% of the original 
contingency.  
 
Cm. Becker moved, seconded by Cm. Johnson to approve Change Order #8 for Phase II of the 
Wastewater Utility facility project for the net cost of $6,725.  Motion carried.  
 
11. MISCELLANEOUS – NONE 

 
12. CLAIMS, APPROPRIATIONS AND CONTRACT PAYMENTS: 
a) Review and possible action relating to the Verified Claims presented by the Director of 
Finance and authorization of payment (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director)  
Cm. Becker moved, seconded by Cm. Hartwick to approve the Verified Claims presented by the 
Director of Finance and authorization of payment. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
Cm. Hartwick moved, seconded by Cm. Becker to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 8:27 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
Michelle Ebbert 
City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  City Clerk/Treasurer’s Office 
  101 N. Main Street 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 
POLICE AND FIRE COMMISSION MEETING 

IN PERSON  
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2022 – 1 P.M. 

CITY HALL – SECOND FLOOR 
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Chairperson Frame called the meeting to order at 1:00 pm. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Commission members present: Frame, Jones, Raub, Schultz, and Turk. Also present: City 
Manager LeMire, Fire Chief Rausch and Clerk/Treasurer Ebbert. 
 
3. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATING TO THE MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 20, 2022 

MEETING OF THE POLICE AND FIRE COMMISSION 
Schultz moved, seconded by Raub to approve the minutes of the October 20, 2022 meeting of 
the Police and Fire Commission. Motion carried.  
 
4. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE ACTION IN RELATION TO HIRING OF TOP CANDIDATE FOR THE 

AEMT POSITION FOR THE FIRE DEPARTMENT (RAUSCH) 
Chief Rausch presented the candidate for the final AEMT position within the Department.  
 
Jones moved, seconded by Turk to approve the hiring of the top candidate for the AEMT 
position for the Fire Department.  Motion carried 5-0.  
 
5. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON HIRING OF FOUR PARAMEDIC POSITIONS FOR THE 

FIRE DEPARTMENT (RAUSCH) 
Chief Rausch reviewed the interview process for the four paramedic positions.  
 
Schultz moved, seconded by Turk to approve the hiring of four paramedic positions for the Fire 
department. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
6. ADJOURNMENT 
Jones moved, seconded by Raub to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 1:07 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
Michelle Ebbert 
City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  City Clerk/Treasurer’s Office 
  101 N. Main Street 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 
SEX OFFENDER RESIDENCE BOARD MEETING 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, MUNICIPAL BUILDING AND VIA ZOOM 
101 NORTH MAIN STREET, FORT ATKINSON, WISCONSIN 

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2022 – 5:00 P.M. 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Manager LeMire called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.  
 

2. ROLL CALL 
Present: Board Members Hartwick, Sachse, Schultz, Chief Bump and Manager LeMire. Also 
present: Capt Sachse, Attorney Westrick and Clerk/Treasurer.  
 

3. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATING TO THE SEX OFFENDER RESIDENCE APPEAL FORM 
FROM MITCHELL DANIEL KOMOROWSKI. 
 
Hartwick moved to deny the request from Mitchell Daniel Komorowski. Seconded by Schultz. 
Motion carried.  
 

4. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATING TO THE SEX OFFENDER RESIDENCE APPEAL FORM 
FROM BILL CHRISTIAN HORNE. 
Mr. Horne was in possession of child pornography when he was under the age of 18 and was 
charged when he turned 18. He will remain on the offender board for another 5 years. He was 
on probation for consuming alcohol and for driving without permission. He attended counseling 
while on probation and while incarcerated. Mrs. Horne spoke in support of allowing her 
husband to be home with her and her daughters.  They have been married for two months and 
dated for two months prior to getting married.  He is looking for employment. Prior to Fort 
Atkinson, Mr. Horne lived in Madison for 6 months.  
 
Board Discussion 
The property required for residency is 1,075 feet from the bike trail and even closer to the 
future location of BASE, approximately 958 feet.  
 
Chief Bump made a motion to recommended approval with a condition of a probationary 
approval check performed by the Fort Atkinson Police Department in 6 months from today and 
12 months from today.  If Mr. Horne is found to be in violation relating to the sexual offender 
ordinance, Mr. Horne would return to the Sexual Offender Residency Board. Seconded by 
Hartwick.  
 

5. ADJOURNMENT 
Chief Bump moved, seconded by Manager LeMire to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 5:32 pm. 



 
 

 
Respectfully submitted 
Michelle Ebbert 
City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director  



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  City Clerk/Treasurer’s Office 
  101 N. Main Street 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

IN PERSON AND VIA ZOOM 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 22, 2022 – 4:00 PM  

CITY HALL – SECOND FLOOR 
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Manager LeMire called the meeting to order at 4:00 pm. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Commissioners: Highfield, Kessenich, Engineer Selle and Manager LeMire. Also present: City 
Attorney, City Clerk/Treasurer, Building Inspector. Absent: Cm. Kessenich. 
 
3. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATING TO THE MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 25, 2022 

REGULAR PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
Cm. Lescohier moved, seconded by Cm. Highfield to approve the minutes from the October 25, 
2022 Plan Commission meeting as submitted. Motion carried.  
 
4. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATING TO A SITE PLAN REVIEW FOR ST. PAUL EV. 

LUTHERAN CHURCH SCHOOL GYM BUILDING ADDITION LOCATED AT 309 BLUFF ST. (SPR-
2022-09) (SELLE) 

Engineer Selle presented the site plan review submitted from St. Paul’s Lutheran Church and 
School. The applicant owns three total adjoining parcels on the east side of Bluff Street where 
the school campus is located. They total approximately 3.9 acres. The church campus is located 
on the west side of Bluff Street and is not proposed to change. A certified survey map (next 
item on this agenda) is proposed to combine all three existing parcels on the east side (school 
site) together into one for the purposes of removing parcel boundaries that run through 
existing buildings and to facilitate a proposed 12,140 square foot gymnasium addition on the 
southeast corner of the existing main school building (appx. 20,000 square feet), fronting Bluff 
Street. There are two existing ingress/egress points to the school campus, both from Bluff 
Street. On the north side of the school building, a driveway leads to the parking lot. On the 
south side of the school building, a driveway leads to the rear portion of the site (playfield and 
recreation area). Only the southern access point is planned to be improved by the proposed 
development 
 
Gary Strom, representative from St. Paul’s referenced the use of the gym for classes and 
programming during and after school use. They have also discussed offering the gym as an 
open gym for various groups.  
 
City staff recommends approval of the CSM and Site Plan, subject to the following conditions: 



 
 

• Allow the existing southern driveway to be reconstructed within the required pavement 
side setback to prevent the loss of internal circulation, safety, and site functionality.  

• Require the pick-up/drop-off area in front of the school (Bluff Street) be improved subject 
to City Engineering review and approval. City commits some responsibility toward this 
solution as well. 

• Allow the curbing requirements to be met with the existing retaining wall, which acts as 
curb today and separates the driveway from the neighboring property to the south. 

• Require removal of the proposed third lighting wall pack on the southern façade of the 
building addition to reduce light level encouragement on the neighboring property to the 
south, if the change does not conflict with Building and Safety Codes. Review and approval 
by City staff. 

• Waive the requirements for paved surface area landscaping points because the applicant 
exceeds the total number of landscaping points required by 79 (distributed throughout the 
new landscaping area). 

• Require the existing chain link fence between the southern driveway and neighboring 
property to the south to be replaced with a solid fence meeting the Bufferyard 
requirements per Section 15.08.30. 

• The applicant has exceeded the standards for rear building materials, but staff recommends 
improving the northern and southern facades of the building addition to extend the 
proposed darker grey insulated metal above the windows to the roof line (as shown the 
proposed materials extend from the top of the brick foundation to the bottom of the 
windows). 

• The applicant should submit to City Staff for approval the required clarification and 
additions noted in the Post Construction Stormwater Management (Ordinance 18-190) 
section above.  

• The applicant should submit to City Staff for approval the required clarification and 
additions noted in the Construction Site Erosion Control Plan (Ordinance 18-189) section 
above.   

• Any other recommendations of City staff and the Plan Commission. 
 
Cm. Schultz moved, seconded by Cm. Highfield to approve the request for a Site Plan Review for 
St. Paul Ev. Lutheran Church School Gym located at 309 Bluff St. subject to the conditions 
outlined in the Staff Report and Recommendation. Motion carried.  
 
5. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL RELATING TO A 

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR ST. PAUL EV. LUTHERAN CHURCH FOR THE PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 309 BLUFF ST. (CSM-2022-07) (SELLE) 

Engineer Selle introduced the CSM submitted. The property owner would like combine 3 
separate lots into a single lot. The location is on Bluff St in Fort Atkinson, and is used for the 
school and parsonage of the St Paul’s Church community. The proposal “cleans up” old 
property lines no longer governing the existing use. The only comment is for the applicant to 
note the proposed stormwater basin as a permanent easement for such on the property. Staff 
reviewed and have no concerns about the consolidation.  



 
 

 
Cm. Schultz moved, seconded by Cm. Lescohier to approve and recommend to the City Council 
a Certified Survey Map for St. Paul Ev. Lutheran Church for the property located at 309 Bluff St. 
Motion carried.  
 
6. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL RELATING TO THE 

REQUEST FOR A PUBLIC MONUMENT REVIEW FOR A KAYAK LAUNCH ON CITY OWNED 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE MUNICIPAL BOAT LAUNCH ON MECHANIC ST. (PMR-2022-02) 
(SELLE) 

Engineer Selle introduced Scout Dakota Friend who wishes to install a kayak launch on the 
municipal boat launch for his Eagle Scout Project. The launch will allow for loading and 
unloading of kayaks at the municipal dock. Mr. Friend will provide a brief presentation to the 
Planning Commission outlining his proposal. Dakota will fund raise and install the kayak launch 
as part of his project. The City will then install and remove the launch along with the other 
municipal piers at this location going forward.  
 
Cm. Lescohier moved, seconded by Cm. Highfield to recommend that the City Council approve 
the request for a Public Monument Review for a Kayak Launch on City owned property located 
at the municipal boat launch on Mechanic St. Motion carried.  
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 
Cm. Schultz moved, seconded by Cm. Lescohier to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 4:23 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
Michelle Ebbert 
City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director 





  City of Fort Atkinson 
  City Clerk/Treasurer’s Office 
  101 N. Main Street 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  December 6, 2022 
 
TO:  Fort Atkinson City Council 
 
FROM:  Michelle Ebbert, City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director 
 
RE: Review and possible action relating to Special Event Fort Atkinson Drift 

Skippers Snowmobile Club request to use snowmobile trails through the 
Klement Business Park 

 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Fort Atkinson is committed to supporting quality special events throughout the 
community. The Special Event Guide and Application was created to assist with planning events 
in the city and to allow appropriate contact information be obtained and forwarded to 
Departments.  The planning guide is designed to assist members of the community in the 
planning, preparation and running of events and programs in Fort Atkinson.  
 
The Special Event Guide defines a special event as a planned extraordinary occurrence or 
temporary aggregation of attractions, open to the public, that (a) is conducted on public 
property, (b) is conducted on private property and has a substantial impact on public property, 
(c) has activities that request special temporary licenses; or (d) require special city services, 
whether open to the public or not, including but not limited to, any of the following: street 
closures, provisions of barricades, garbage cans, stages or special no parking signs, special 
electrical services, or special police protection. Special events include, but not limited to, 
neighborhood and community festivals, parades, processions, fairs, and bicycle or foot races.  
 
DISCUSSION 
Event: Snowmobile Trails through the south side Business Park  
Dates and Hours of Event:  12/15/22 through 3/15/23 
Locations: South Side Business Park 
Contact Person: Todd Lueder 
Estimated Number of Attendees:  N/A 
 
Event information was routed to Departments with the following comments without concerns.  
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
There is no financial impact to the City of Fort Atkinson for the event.  
 
 



 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the Fort Drift Skippers Snowmobile Trails through 
the South Side Business Park from 12/15/22 through 3/15/23 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Special Event Application, map, insurance and letter. 
 











Agenda
City of Fort Atkinson 

City Clerk/Treasurer’s Office 
101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: December 6, 2022 

TO: Fort Atkinson City Council  

FROM:  Michelle Ebbert, City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director 

RE: Review and possible action relating to the 2023 Small Animal Collection 
Contract with the Humane Society of Jefferson County  

BACKGROUND 
The City of Fort Atkinson has partnered with the Humane Society of Jefferson County to provide 
collection services for small animals unlawfully at large within the city limits. The Contract 
between the City and the Humane Society of Jefferson County is revisited annually and runs for 
one calendar year.  

DISCUSSION 
The Humane Society has served our community by furnishing and maintaining facilities and 
equipment adequate for the housing, shelter and care of all dogs and cats unlawfully at large or 
surrendered to the shelter. Over the last 12 months, the Humane Society has seen large 
changes in economic conditions including challenges relating to increasing costs and staffing.  

The Humane Society is proposing changes to the services provided in order to reduce the 
overall cost of the contract. The Humane Society is proposing to continue to provide animal 
pickup during regular business hours as normal but is proposing to reduce the on-call overnight 
services. Humane Society staff has reached out to all law enforcement partners, who will likely 
be impacted by this change, and found support.  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
The recently completed Census increased the City’s population to 12,583. The 2023 proposed 
rate is $2.58 per resident, for a total of $32,464.14. The Humane Society has continually offered 
at 1.5% discount should the City elect to provide the contract payment in one lump sum in the 
month of January. The City traditionally takes advantage of this offer and, if approved, intends 
to pay the 2023 discounted annual fee of $31,977.17 in January 2023. $35,500 was included in 
the 2023 budget for this service (account 01-53-5343-000). 

Table 1 on the next page shows the Contract rates from 2016-2023. As one can see from the 
table, the City has consistently taken advantage of the offer of savings to pay the contract in full 
in January of each year. Also, the 2023 Contract represents a savings of $2,136.56 over the 
2022 Contract.  



 
 

 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the 2023 Small Animal Collection Contract with 
the Humane Society of Jefferson County in the amount of $31,977.18 for the term of January 1, 
2023 through December 31, 2023 and authorize the City Manager to execute said Contract. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Humane Society of Jefferson County Cover Letter, Humane Society of Jefferson County Small 
Animal Collection Contract 

Table 1: Humane Society of Jefferson County Small Animal Collection Contract  Rates 2016-2023
Contract Year Population Per capita Contracted Rate Discount Discounted Rate Savings

2023 12,583.00     2.58$            32,464.14$             1.50% 31,977.18$              486.96$      
2022 12,458.00     2.78$            34,633.24$             1.50% 34,113.74$              519.50$      
2021 12,395.00     2.72$            33,714.40$             1.50% 33,208.68$              505.72$      
2020 12,437.00     2.72$            33,828.64$             1.50% 33,323.66$              504.98$      
2019 12,390.00     2.68$            33,205.20$             1.50% 32,585.70$              619.50$      
2018 12,401.00     2.63$            32,614.63$             1.50% 32,118.59$              496.04$      
2017 12,441.00     2.59$            32,222.19$             1.50% 31,483.32$              738.87$      
2016 12,355.00     2.53$            31,258.15$             1.50% 30,516.85$              741.30$      



  Phone: (920) 674-2048 
W6127 Kiesling Road  Fax: (920) 674-9176 
Jefferson, WI 53549  Email: Shelter@HSJC-wis.com 

It is the mission of the Humane Society of Jefferson County to care and provide for the lost, homeless, neglected, and abused animals of 
Jefferson County, help place them in forever homes, and work to inspire kinder and more humane communities. 

 
 

Bringing people and animals together since 1922 
 
 
November 15, 2022 
 
Michelle Ebbert 
Clerk & Treasurer, City of Fort Atkinson 
101 N. Main St. 
Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 
 
 
Dear Michelle, 
 
Thank you for continuing to work with the Humane Society of Jefferson County for your animal control 
services in 2022.  We hope your municipality will continue to trust in our expertise and services for the 
2023 contracting year.  

 
As we are sure you are aware, the last 12 months has seen some large changes in economic conditions.  
We usually base our municipal rate increases in part on CPI, which currently stands at 7.7%.  We have 
also seen some unprecedented costs increases for our shelter, most notably including areas of staffing, 
medical care, and even a 70% jump in our cat litter cost. 
 
For next year, we are happy to report that despite those cost increases, we are able to offer a lower rate 
to your municipality based on some changes we are making to our contract that we will explain in this 
letter. 
 
Your contract amount for 2023 will be $2.58 per resident, which is a 7.2% decrease from your rate in 
2022.  With the population changes for this year, your payment comes to $2,705.34 monthly or 
$32,464.14 per year. If you elect to pay the full amount upfront in January again, your cost will be 
$31,977.17 reflecting the 1.5% full payment discount. 
 
In order to make this cost saving change, we will be modifying Section 2 of the services provided in the 
contract.  This section covers animals being received or picked up by shelter staff.  Our shelter will 
continue to provide animal pickup during regular business hours as normal, but will be setting aside 
most on-call, overnight services. 
 
In addition to the cost savings for our municipalities, there are a number of reasons why we are making 
this change: 

• Maintaining staffing levels for on-call services has increasingly become a challenge.  We have 
had difficulty finding new staff willing to carry out this requirement and in keeping staff who are 
required to perform these duties.  We have specifically lost good candidates for our shelter staff 
because they were unable or unwilling to fulfill an on-call requirement. 

• It has become a significant safety risk to our staff.  We currently only have one staff member on-
call at any given time.  Based on an outside security assessment we have been directed to never 
have a staff member go out alone at night and/or to always involve law enforcement in any 
pickup.  The cost of meeting this liability requirement would be up to a 15% increase in 2023. 



• This is an expensive service to maintain that does not see a lot of activity.  In 2021, our busiest 
contract saw 15 pickup calls all year long.  Some of our smaller municipalities had only 1 call all 
year. 

 
Before making this change we also directly involved all of our local law enforcement partners.  All of our 
municipal police departments and the Jefferson County Sheriff are onboard with this change and will 
work with our shelter to continue to respond to stray animal calls over night.  We will also continue to 
serve as a dropoff location for law enforcement and will be on-call to respond to exigent circumstances 
such as a large scale seizure. 
 
Our shelter will continue to provide our current pickup and drop-off service for stray animals to 
residents and law enforcement during regular business hours and will be able to pickup animals 
collected overnight after the shelter opens for regular business hours as well.   
 
It is our strong desire to maintain the level of service we provide as well as maintaining relationships 
with the municipalities that we serve. Please let us know if you plan any changes to your municipal 
animal fee structure for residents so we can be ready to go on 1/1/23. 
 
Included along with this letter is a copy of the annual contract.  Please sign and return one to us at your 
earliest convenience.  
 
I hope that this cost savings is of significant benefit to your municipality in 2023.  If your municipal 
leadership has questions we are happy to sit down in person or attend a meeting to help clarify any 
details.  As always please feel free to give me a call at 920-674-2048 if I can be of service. 
 
Best regards, 
 

Jeff Okazaki 
Jeff Okazaki 
Executive Director, Humane Society of Jefferson County 



1 

 

 
 

THE HUMANE SOCIETY OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, INC. 

W6127 Kiesling Road, Jefferson, Wi. 53549 

(920) 674-2048    Fax (920) 674-9176 

 

SMALL ANIMAL COLLETION CONTRACT 

 

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into by and between the City of Fort Atkinson, a 

municipal corporation, organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of 

Wisconsin, hereinafter called First Party, and the Humane Society of Jefferson County, Inc., 

a private non-profit corporation, with its principal place of business in Jefferson County, 

Wisconsin, hereinafter called the Second Party. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

In consideration of this contract, First Party agrees to allow Second Party to retain all 

boarding fees and agrees to pay $2,705.34 monthly or $32,464.14 annually, to collect, 

impound, process, and dispose of all dogs and cats unlawfully at large in the City.  If the 

First Party chooses to pay the full annual balance within 30 days of the start of the calendar 

year, a discount of 1.5% will be applied to the annual fee, for a total payment of $31,977.17. 

 

The payment to be made by the First Party shall be computed upon the basis of the 

population of said city as established by the newer of the most recent Federal Census or 

most current estimate, at the rate of $2.58 (Two dollars and fifty-eight cents) for each 

person living within such area.  The population of the City of Fort Atkinson based on most 

current estimate, is 12,583. 

 

Second Party in connection herewith specifically agrees to perform the following services: 

 

1. The Second Party will furnish and maintain facilities and equipment adequate for the 

housing, shelter, care, and disposal of all dogs and cats unlawfully at large, and to 

impound them under and pursuant to Wisconsin Statues and ordinances of the City 

now existing or as hereafter amended, the object being to impound such stray dogs 

and cats and to return to the rightful owner or place in a new home or euthanize same 

under the ordinances of the First Party. Animals other than common household 

pets may be collected and/or boarded for the required holding period.  If the 

animal is not redeemed and reimbursed by the owner, the cost of containing 

and caring for said animal may be billed to the municipality. 
 

2. The Second Party will impound and keep such animals above referred to until 

otherwise disposed of in accordance with Wisconsin Statues and the ordinances of 

the First Party, now in force, or as hereafter amended during the term covered by this 

contract, and will employ and pay competent persons to perform and will collect, 



2 

 

take, keep and dispose of all dogs and cats tendered to it by or from any department 

of the First Party.  Such animals will be received or picked up during regular 

business hours for the shelter, seven days a week.  For purposes of redemption of 

stray dogs and cats, the Animal Shelter shall be open at least thirty hours per week. 

 

3. Second Party will wholly cooperate with First Party and any and all departments                         

of the First Party in performance and observance of the ordinances of the First Party 

and Wisconsin Statutes. 

 

4. Second Party will cooperate with any duly elected or appointed official of the First 

Party in the prosecution of violations of any ordinance of the First Party in the 

prosecution of violations of any ordinance of the First Party or Wisconsin Statutes, 

with respect to dogs or cats.  Second Party agrees to maintain telephone answering 

services and provide two-way communication with at least one animal control 

vehicle.  Second Party agrees to provide First Party with the names and addresses of 

owners redeeming stray pets after all legal obligations have been met pursuant to 

ordinances of the First Party. 

 

5. The term of this contract shall be for a period of twelve months starting on January 

1, 2023 and ending on December 31, 2023. 

 

6. This contract shall be in full force and effect, and binding upon the parties hereto, 

when legally executed by the First Party by resolution approved by the City of the 

First Party, and when executed by the Second Party by its proper officers as provided 

by the Second Party by its proper officers as provided by law. 

 

7. Second Party agrees to fulfill the First Party’s requirement under Jefferson County 

Ordinance 24 to impound any stray dog or cat that is suspect in a bite case, for a ten-

day observation period as required by state law. 

 

8. Second Party agrees to carry liability insurance which shall save harmless the First 

Party and protect the public and any person from any and all claims for damages by 

reason of bodily injury or property damage arising from the activities by the Second 

Party under the terms of this contract.  Upon approval of this contract by the City 

Council the Second Party shall furnish the First Party with proper affidavits executed 

by representatives of insurance companies qualified to do business in Wisconsin, 

evidencing that said insurance company or companies have issued liability insurance 

policies effective during the life of this contract, protecting the public and any person 

from injuries or damage sustained by reason of the carrying out of the activities 

under this agreement.  The affidavit shall specifically evidence the following forms 

of insurance protection: 

 

a. Public liability insurance covering all activities and operations performed by 

the persons directly employed by the Second Party. 

 



3 

 

b. Bodily injury liability insurance and property damage liability insurance on 

any and all motor vehicles employed in the activities and operation of the 

Second Party under this agreement, whether owned by the Second Party or by 

other persons, firms, or corporation. 

 

9. Second Party shall have the right to retain any all voluntary contributions received by 

it in connection with the collection and disposal of animals under the contract and 

shall further have the right to dispose of such animals as provided for by Wisconsin 

Statutes and the ordinances of the First Party. 

 

10. In addition thereto, Second Party shall report monthly to the First Party by giving a 

complete record of all the animals handled by Second Party for the First Party. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF            By:     _________________________________  

 

the parties have executed this agreement on the _____________ day  

 

of ______________, 20_____. 

 

 

Or by: __________________________________ 

                   Mayor/Administrator 

 

Or by: ___________________________________ 

                    Chairperson 

 

 

ATTEST: 

                        ____________________________________ 

                        Clerk 

 

 

                        _____________________________________ 

                        Treasurer 

 

 

THE HUMANE SOCIETY OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, INC. 

 

 

By: ______________________________________ 

                Executive Director 

 

By: ______________________________________ 

                 Board President 



Agenda
City of Fort Atkinson 

Fire Department 
124 Milwaukee Ave. W 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: December 6, 2022 

TO: Fort Atkinson City Council  

FROM:  Daryl A Rausch, Fire Chief/Emergency Management Director 

RE: Review and possible action relating to the approval of EMS Billing Contract for 
the Fire Department 

BACKGROUND 
As of January 1, 2023, the City’s Fire Department will become the primary 911 EMS provider. As such, 
ambulance billing and revenue collection will become a significant part of the Department’s funding. 
Fire Department staff recently sent out a request for proposals (RFP) to companies to provide billing 
services. Staff is requesting approval of a new contract effective January 1, 2023. 

Since the City began providing 911 response in 2018, the City has used LifeQuest Services to handle all 
EMS billing. Because of the limited transport and revenue stream, LifeQuest has been charging 17% of 
revenue collected to provide this service. 

After January 1, 2023, the City is estimating that the Fire Department will provide approximately 1,400 
EMS responses a year (with more than 1,100 transports).With that increase in call volume, the service 
fee of 17% is excessive. Staff reached out LifeQuest to discuss a new fee structure but were unable to 
reach an agreement. Due to these negotiations being unsuccessful, staff elected to release an RFP to 
ascertain interest from other companies who could provide the service. 

DISCUSSION 
Staff posted the RFP on the City’s website and also provided the document to several targeted 
companies who were used or recommended by other communities. 

• EMS Management & Consulting, Henderson, NC
• AMS Solutions, Dallas, TX
• Medical Billers & Coders, Wilmington, DE
• EMS Medical Billing Associates, Milwaukee, W
• LifeQuest Service (our current provider)

Several of these companies expressed interest in the proposal; however, only one response was 
received. LifeQuest has proposed a continuation of our current contract structure with an improved 
service contingency fee of 8% of collected revenues. 

The response from our current provider continues a very successful relationship. LifeQuest was 
extremely helpful in starting our Basic Life Support (BLS) service in 2018 as well as assisting as we 



 
 

transition our service to a full-service Advanced Life Support (ALS) 911 emergency medical transport 
service. Our collection rates have consistently exceeded national standards and our account 
representative, Cerry Schrader, has been extremely helpful and efficient. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
The costs associated with the contract are similar to the projections contained within our EMS 
startup proposal and budget. There will be minimal impact on budget as the fees are reflective 
of a portion of revenues and there is not an annual service fee only a percentage of collected 
billings. 
 
In the 2023 EMS Fund (fund 7) budget, staff estimated $695,000 in revenue from ambulance 
runs, charges for services, and transports. At the time, the billing service fees were estimated at 
between 8 and 9% of run revenue. Staff budgeted $57,000 for this service in 2023. The proposal 
of 8% of collected revenue with an estimated $695,000 in run revenue equates to an expense 
of $55,600, which is slightly below the budgeted amount.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the City Council approve the proposal from LifeQuest to provide ambulance 
billing services at 8% of revenue and authorize the City Manager to execute a continuation of 
the current contract with said reduced billing service rate.  

ATTACHMENTS 
City of Fort Atkinson Request for Proposals for Ambulance Billing Services; Proposal from 
LifeQuest Services 



























































































































1 | P a g e 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)  

Emergency Ambulance Billing and Collection 
 
 

RFP Issued: October 18, 2022 
 

Return Proposals by: November 18, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

The City of Fort Atkinson is requesting qualifications to identify vendors to assure that it is receiving the 
optimum level of services at a competitive price. 

 
Responses must be returned on or before NOVEMBER 18, 2022, at 2:00 PM to: 

 
City of Fort Atkinson 

Fire Department 
Attn: RFP-FIRE-2022 - Ambulance Billing 

124 Milwaukee Avenue West 
Fort Atkinson, WI 53538  



2 | P a g e 

 

 

 

The Fort Atkinson Fire Department provides fire, rescue, and EMS transport services and IS 
ASSUMING PRIMARY 911 Advanced Life Support (Paramedic) response on JANUARY 1, 2023, 
and will provide more than 1200 emergency responses a year in the EMS district.  The EMS district 
closely mirrors the fire district lines but does vary in a few instances. 

Due to increasing call volume the fire department has elected to staff three ALS ambulances to 
provide service to our community and portions of five surrounding townships.  The department will 
also provide limited inter-facility transport services using one ambulance.  Our community hospital 
currently utilizes a private EMS vendor for more than 70 inter-facility transports per month. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 

Qualified firms are invited to submit a proposal to furnish EMS AMBULANCE BILLING AND 
COLLECTION SERVICES for the City of Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS by replying to the enclosed 
specification. For your proposal to be considered, you must fill in completely all items in this 
specification. Proposals should be submitted in a sealed package clearly marked “EMS BILLING 
AND COLLECTIONS BID” and marked with the due date. If more than one package is submitted, 
they should be marked 1 of 2, etc. All proposals must be submitted with four (4) copies - one (1) 
identified original plus three (3) additional copies, along with business references to: 

Mail: City of Fort Atkinson Fire Department 
Attn: RFP-FIRE-2022 - Ambulance Billing 

124 Milwaukee Avenue West 
Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 
 
Mail should be clearly marked: RFP-FIRE-2022 - Ambulance Billing 
 
Proposals must be received by no later than 2 p.m. at the above address Friday, November 18, 2022.  

Late proposals will not be considered regardless of the reason. After the successful bid is 
determined, the respective company will be notified within 3-5 business days. Acceptance of the 
bid will be pending formal approval by the Fort Atkinson City Council. 

 

  



3 | P a g e 

 

 

INTERPRETATION OF SPECIFICATION 

During the proposal period, questions of interpretation and clarification should be directed to Chief 
Daryl Rausch. Questions should be submitted at least three (3) business days before the due date of 
the Request for Proposal (RFP). It is required that all questions be submitted in writing, via email to 
drausch@fortatkinsonwi.gov. 

PLEASE NOTE: Any questions answered during the proposal period, if said answer affects the 
essence of the proposal, will be incorporated in an addendum, which will be forwarded equally to 
all Contractors. No verbal instructions or interpretations of drawings and specifications will be 
made other than indicated above. 

 

INFORMATION FOR VENDORS 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

This RFP provides interested vendors with sufficient information to enable them to prepare and 
submit proposals for consideration by City of Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS, hereinafter referred to as 
the City. This RFP contains instructions governing the proposals to be provided, requirements 
which must be met for eligible consideration, general evaluation criteria and other requirements to 
be met by each proposal. The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals received 
because of this request or to negotiate separately with competing Contractors. 

The City has the right to waive any informalities, defects, or irregularities in any proposal. The City 
reserves the right to accept the proposal of a vendor other than that of the lowest bidder. Proposals 
should be simple and economical, providing a straight-forward and concise description of the 
vendor's ability to meet the requirements of the RFP. To be considered, vendors must submit a 
complete response to this RFP using the format provided. Each proposal must be submitted in four 
(4) copies. Proposals must be signed by an official authorized to bind the vendor to its provisions. 

CONTRACTUAL CONDITIONS 

For this RFP, the proposal must remain valid for at least ninety (90) days. Moreover, the contents of 
the proposal of the successful bidder will become contractual obligations if a contract is entered 
into. The selected firm will be required to enter into a formal agreement with the City of Fort 
Atkinson. 

The City reserves the right to delete or amend any of the services as listed and described in this 
RFP. If a satisfactory contract cannot be negotiated, negotiations will be formally terminated. 
Contract negotiation will then be started with the first alternate vendor. 

 



4 | P a g e 

 

 

The successful vendor will be required to include a disclosure statement of any potential conflicts of 
interest that the firm may have due to other clients, contracts, or interest associated with this project. 

The selected vendor will be required to assume responsibility for all services offered in the proposal 
whether she or he provides them. 

Further, the City will consider the selected vendor to be the sole point of contact regarding 
contractual matters. News releases pertaining to this project will not be made without prior City 
approval. 

 

KNOWLEDGE OF CONDITIONS 

At the time of the opening of the proposals, each Contractor will be presumed to have inspected, to 
have read and to have been thoroughly familiar with the specifications. The Contractor shall satisfy 
themselves as to the nature and location of the work and general and local conditions. He or she 
shall gain full knowledge of working conditions and other facilities in the area which will have a 
bearing on the performance of his or her work. Any failure by the Contractor to acquaint 
himself/herself with all the available information shall not relieve that Contractor from any 
responsibility for performing all work properly. No additional compensation shall be allowed for 
conditions increasing the Contractor’s cost which were not known or appreciated by that Contractor 
when submitting the proposal. Contractors shall understand that the City will not be responsible for 
any errors or omissions by the Contractor in the presentation of the response. 

 

CITY'S RESERVED RIGHTS 

Notwithstanding anything else provided herein, in any notice or otherwise, the City reserves, and 
may in its sole discretion, exercise the following rights and options with respect to this request: 

 To accept, reject or negotiate modifications to all bids as it shall, in its sole discretion, deem 
to be in the best interest of the City; submission of a bid does not bind the City to any action 
or to any party. Submissions do not create or assume any relationship, agency or obligation 
by the City. 

 To issue additional solicitations for bids and/or addenda to the bid. 

 To award the bid to the bidder the City has determined to be most responsive, who has 
submitted a complete bid which meets the specifications and requirements which are 
deemed by the City most advantageous to and in the best interest of the City. 

 To negotiate with any one or more of the bidders. 

 To waive any irregularities in any bid. 

 To select any bid as the basis for negotiations and to negotiate with bidder for amendment or 



5 | P a g e 

 

 

other modifications to their bid. 

 To conduct investigations with respect to the qualification of each bidder; to obtain 
additional information deemed necessary to determine the ability of the bidder to carry out 
the obligations required herein. This includes information needed to evaluate the experience 
and financial capability of the bidder 

The City does not agree to pay and shall not be liable for any finder’s fees, commissions, or other 
fees for opportunities arising under this request. 

Each bidder (successful and otherwise) shall bear all costs associated with preparing and submitting 
its bid. 

All materials submitted by bidders (successful and otherwise) become the sole property of the City 
upon submission and will not be returned. 

The City has the absolute right to use, at no cost to the City, any ideas, concepts, or configurations 
that are disclosed (orally, in writing or otherwise) to the City by a bidder (successful or otherwise) 
as part of this request process. 

 

SEALED BID AND EXEMPTION FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS 

All bids shall remain sealed prior to being publicly opened as provided herein. However, at any 
time, City staff may inform the public of the fact that bids have been received, how many bids have 
been received and, if known by City staff, who submitted a sealed bid. Further, at any time, the 
public may view the outside of sealed bids which have been submitted. 

 

CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 

All proposals received from vendors will be reviewed and evaluated by qualified personnel. These 
personnel may recommend for selection the proposal which most closely meets the requirements of 
the RFP. The personnel are not bound to recommend any of the proposals. 

The following criteria will be of major importance in reviewing the proposals. 

QUALIFICATIONS: Ability of the vendor to satisfy the requirements specified in Scope of Work 
section of this RFP including, but not limited to, the firm’s qualifications or experience.  

TECHNICAL: Contractor’s plan for accomplishment of the task, to include the quality and 
experience of personnel assigned to the project; understanding of the scope of work; collection 
philosophy including recent collection experience; technology and equipment. Please include your 
collection percentage rate of current clients. 



6 | P a g e 

 

 

OTHER: Professional references from clients that are considered government EMS agencies 
including the location of the agency. 

CONTRACTOR’S WARRANTY: The following language must be included in every proposal 

 

CONTRACTOR'S WARRANTY 

The undersigned person warrants that he/she is/have: 

 Is an officer of the organization. 

 Is authorized to offer a proposal in full compliance with all requirements and conditions as 
set forth in the RFP. 

 Has fully read and understands the RFP and has full knowledge of the scope, nature, 
quantity and quality of the work to be performed, and the requirements and conditions under 
which the work is to be performed. 

 

CONTRACTOR: 

     BY:   ______________________________________________ (SIGNATIURE) 

                  

_________________________________________(PRINT NAME & TITLE) 

 

____________________________________________ (DATE) 

 

_______________________________________________(NAME OF COMPANY) 

                      _________________________________________________ (CITY, STATE, ZIP) 

        ______________________________ (CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER) 

 

  



7 | P a g e 

 

 

VENDOR INFORMATION 

PURPOSE 

City of Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS is seeking proposals from qualified firms, hereinafter referred to 
as the “Contractor”, to PROVIDE EMS AMBULANCE BILLING SERVICES for the City of Fort 
Atkinson Fire & EMS Services, hereinafter referred to as “City of Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS” or 
the “City” in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications contained in this Request for 
Proposals (RFP). 

 

ELIGIBILITY 

To be eligible to respond to this RFP, the proposing firm must demonstrate that they, or the 
principals assigned to the project, have successfully completed services, like those specified in the 
Scope of Services section of this RFP. 

The proposal should demonstrate at least five (5) years of documented, successful experience with 
and current knowledge of, primary response EMS ambulance services billing. Experience must 
include filing claims with government programs such as Medicare and Medicaid, as well as 
commercial health insurance programs (HMO’s and PPO’s) and the capability to process 1200-
1500 emergency and scheduled transports per year. 

 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Information and materials received by the City in connection with all Contractors’ responses shall 
be deemed to be public records subject to public inspection upon opening of the bid. However, 
certain exemptions to the public records law are statutorily provided for. Therefore, if the 
Contractor believes any of the information contained in his or her response is exempt from the 
Public Records Law, then the Contractor must in his or her response specifically identify the 
material which is deemed to be exempt and cite the legal authority for the exemption; otherwise, the 
City will treat all materials received as public records. 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

BACKGROUND 

The City is requesting proposals for the collection of EMS fees from patients; and their insurance 
carriers, transported via ambulance to health facilities or other facilities by City of Fort Atkinson 
Fire & EMS and for billable non-transport charges. This RFP is intended to cover all points of a 



8 | P a g e 

 

 

contract from the reporting by City of Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS of the service to the satisfaction of 
the receivable. 

The City wishes to obtain proposals from a qualified service provider for the actual billing of funds 
due and Accounts Receivable posting of funds received by the City of Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS 
for these services. 

 

CONTRACTOR SCOPE OF WORK 

The Contractor, under this contract, shall provide all services necessary to collect for services 
provided by the City of Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS. These services shall include but not be limited 
to:  

 The contactor shall accept receipt of the patient data necessary for billing. The data will 
come from an ePCR system called Image Trend Elite (or acceptable alternative).  

 The Contractor will be furnished with the EMS chart summaries electronically. 

 The Contractor shall be responsible for reviewing each PCR for content to accomplish the 
following: 

 To check for discrepancies and ensure the number of PCRs received match the number 
of patients transported as documented on the PCRs. This is particularly important in the 
instance where there are multiple patients at one incident. 

 Ensure that the appropriate fee box has been selected and the documentation to support 
the charge is present. Verify Signature compliance. 

 Assign the appropriate billing procedure code and ICD-10 diagnosis code based on the 
documentation, treatment, and chief complaint of the patient. 

 Review reports that require a “Treatment by no Transport Charge” to be assigned per 
documentation of the PCR. 

 Obtain current patient insurance information per claim. 

 The Contractor shall be responsible for sorting the PCRs in numerical/date order as well as 
sorting all the paperwork in a systematic order for billing organization and future 
accessibility. 

 The Contractor shall provide electronic claims processing and paper filings to all insurance 
companies. The first invoice will be dated no later than five (5) days after the contracted 
billing company has received the PCR. The second notice will be sent to the patient or 
responsible party thirty (30) days after the original invoice. The third notice (final notice) 
will be sent to the patient or responsible party thirty (30) days after the second notice has 
been mailed. Services to be billed will include base fee, mileage, and on-scene medical 
treatment (when applicable). 

 The Contractor shall be responsible for the initial collection, generation of all insurance 



9 | P a g e 

 

 

forms, filings, and record maintenance. 

 The Contractor shall be responsible for reviewing account status with the City of Fort 
Atkinson Fire & EMS as requested by the City or as required to address questions by the 
payor. 

The Contractor shall provide the following documents: 

 Daily Payment logs (sent once per week) with deposit confirmation attached and a 
monthly summary showing balancing of daily deposits to collection report. 

 Collections profiles for each month, dating back to the beginning of said contract. 

 Status of all accounts (payer mix) for the current month and total in system. 

 Aging Receivable Report (monthly). 

 Month End Reports. 

 Monthly write off reports. 

 Overpayment (Refund request) invoices. 

 Non-Sufficient Funds Check Reports. 

 Uncollectable(s) Report (listing undeliverable, unable to locate, etc.). 

 Any additional reports that City of Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS may need, or request will 
automatically be formatted to their requirements and sent to the department. 

The Contractor shall comply with the policies and procedures developed and implemented by City 
of Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS in response to the improvement of the department and the privacy act 
of HIPAA. The Contractor shall enter a business associate agreement with City of Fort Atkinson 
Fire & EMS to ensure all HIPAA policies are adhered to. Any violations of HIPAA by the 
contracted billing company will be grounds to terminate all contractual agreements immediately. 

The Contractor shall comply with HIPAA regarding protected health information (PHI) and 
guardian of all record sets and shall maintain all documentation records and patient information in a 
safe and secure manner allowing for inspection and/or audit by the City. 

The Contractor shall be required to store all record sets for a minimum of thirty-six (36) months 
after term of contract and then turn them over to the City for permanent storage and to turn over all 
records in the event of contract termination. 

The Contractor shall provide sufficient Customer Service Representative(s) to assist patients and/or 
other third-party payees in all billing inquiries in a timely manner, not to exceed one (1) business 
day. 

The contactor shall conduct any follow-up required to obtain necessary insurance information for 
payment processing. All payments will be received by the Contractor on behalf of the City of Fort 
Atkinson Fire & EMS and be deposited to the City’s designated bank account. Records of deposits 
will be correlated with database reports daily, and this information will be emailed to the city daily. 



10 | P a g e 

 

 

The Contractor shall follow-up with patient or patient’s third party for collection of the receivable 
in increments of thirty (30) days, sixty (60) days, and ninety (90) days, after the initial billing. 
Initial bills to Insurance carriers shall be sent within five (5) days of the Contractor receiving the 
PCR from City. The City shall be provided information monthly, on those accounts deemed non-
collectible except by further legal means. 

The Contractor shall document follow-up efforts and results must be available to the City. Follow-
up efforts after the initial effort must also be documented and retrievable. 

The Contractor will mail statements to the patient within five (5) days after the Contractor receives 
the PCR from Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS. 

The Contractor agrees to negotiate and arrange a modified payment schedule for those individuals 
who are unable to pay the full amount when invoiced. The Contractor is not authorized to accept 
payments marked as “paid in full” or “accord and satisfaction” unless the account is paid in full. At 
no time shall the Contractor negotiate for patient to pay a lesser amount of the bill in that City of 
Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS would have to forgive a portion of a bill. 

The Contractor shall provide compliance/documentation training for the City of Fort Atkinson, at 
the discretion of the Fire Chief or EMS Division Chief on changes in the billing process and new 
requirements for data gathering as they occur. 

The Contractor shall provide: 

 All invoices and related insurance forms with remittance advice. 

 Return envelope with the address to be designated and approved by the City. Window 
envelopes are acceptable for satisfying this requirement. 

 Postage for the mailing of all said invoices and forms for the billing operation. 

 Patient statement must contain a message stating, Cash, credit/debit cards and 

 checks are accepted. Checks must be made payable to the City of Fort Atkinson. Patient 
statement must include a telephone number for patients to call and make a payment by 
phone. 

 Sample bill forms and sample messages that can be used on patient statements, as part of the 
response. All text, format, and color of printing and stock subject to approval by the City. 

 Reasonable effort to locate and correct any incorrect billing information, i.e., address, 
insurance, etc., for billable patients. A report providing such efforts shall be provided. 

 A working arrangement with all City of Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS services affiliated 
hospitals. 

 A reconciliation report on the last day of the month that will show all patients who have 
been billed for the month. The invoice will display the PCR number, date of service, BLS or 
ALS, miles transported, patient billing code assignment and the total amount of the invoice. 

 A reconciliation report on the last day of the month that will show a breakdown of ALS/BLS 



11 | P a g e 

 

 

patients and the mileage charges for each category as well as On Scene Treatment fees. It 
will be broken down per category to ensure all PCRs processed and mailed to the Contractor 
have been processed within the approved timeline. 
 

 Assist the City of Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS with a refund request including all pertinent 
information relating to refund payments to patients and/or insurance company, indicating the 
refund payee’s name, address, and reason for refund. 

Given reasonable notification, the City has the right to audit all financial records pertaining to the 
billing and collection for the City of Fort Atkinson Fire & EMS for a period of three (3) years after 
association of the parties terminates. 

The Contractor shall comply with any special report request in reference to transport locations and 
response modes to specific locations on a case-by-case basis. 

The City will provide the necessary patient demographic information to the Contractor daily for 
those patients who have been recently transported or treated at scene. 

The City will comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, rules, and regulations as applicable to 
the services being contracted for the City will provide all information relevant to payments made at 
their office as requested by the Contractor. 

 

PROPOSAL FORMAT 

The proposal must name all persons or entities interested in the proposal as principals. The proposal 
must declare that it is made without collusion with any other person or entity submitting or not 
submitting a proposal pursuant to this Request for Proposal. 

Contractor shall prepare their proposals using the following format with each section clearly labeled 
and shall include the following: 

1. Letter of Transmittal. 
2. Qualifications and experience of the firm(s)/individual(s) who will provide the services 

which shall include documentation of the firm’s experience in similar work. 
3. Contractor shall provide a list of all employees, agents and/or Contractors that will be 

assigned to provide service to City, including job title, degrees, training, detailed list of 
experience and Contractor will indicate who will be assigned as the primary contact. In 
addition, a Confidentiality Agreement may be required by all employees, agents and/or 
Contractors to ensure all sensitive information such as HIPAA protected information, social 
security numbers and so forth are kept confidential.  

 



12 | P a g e 

 

 

4. List at least three (3) current and pertinent professional and financial references (name, 
address, and phone number) that the CITY may contact in relation to the Contractor's 
qualifications, experience, and stability. 

5. Scope of Work - This section of the proposal should explain the Scope of Work as 
understood by the Contractor and detail the approach, activities, and work products. 

6.  The proposal shall also include: 
a. A rationale for the approach taken schedule of deliverables. Explain the rational for the 

approach you are recommending accomplishing the tasks requested in the RFP. 
b. A list and sample of the work product(s) which the Contractor will provide. 
c. A list of any assistance City may be requested to provide the Contractor. 
d. Provide completed cost proposal. 
e. Provide a statement of Contractor's financial stability, including information as to 

current or prior bankruptcy proceedings. 
f. Provide a summary of any litigation filed against the Contractor in the past three years 

which is related to the services that Contractor provides in the regular course of 
business. The summary shall state the nature of the litigation, a brief description of the 
case, the outcome or projected outcome and the monetary amount involved. 

g. Identify the Contractor’s type of business entity (e.g., sole proprietorship, partnership, 
corporation, etc.). Identify whether the business entity is incorporated another state, or a 
foreign country. 

h. In the case of a sole proprietorship or partnership, provide a W-9 for all owners or 
partners. Provide EIN for business. 

i. If Contractor is a corporation; provide certification from the Wisconsin Secretary of 
State verifying Contractor's corporate status and good standing, provide a W-9, and in 
the case of out of state corporations, evidence of authority to do business in the State of 
Wisconsin. 

j. Any additional information that the Contractor considers pertinent for consideration 
should be included in a separate section of the proposal.  

 

END OF RFP 

 

 

 

 



Agenda
City of Fort Atkinson 

City Manager’s Office 
101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: December 6, 2022 

TO: Fort Atkinson City Council  

FROM:  Andy Selle, P.E., City Engineer/Director of Public Works 

RE: Review and possible action relating to a request for a Public 
Monument/Building Review for installation of a Kayak Launch 

BACKGROUND 
Dakota Friend wishes to install a kayak launch on the municipal boat launch for his Eagle Scout 
Project. The launch will allow for loading and unloading of kayaks at the municipal dock. 

DISCUSSION 
One of the objectives of the Public Monument/Building Review process is to identify and 
explain the public purpose of a proposed public monument/improvement to ensure that it 
serves the community as a whole, not just an individual or group.  

Another objective of the Public Monument/Building Review process is to identify the short and 
long-term maintenance needs of the monument or building and properly plan for them, with 
the hope that all future maintenance, repair, and replacement of structures does not fall onto 
the City. Dakota will fund raise and install the kayak launch as part of his project. The City will 
then install and remove the launch along with the other municipal piers at this location going 
forward.  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
Any costs associated with the future maintenance of the project will be the responsibility of the 
City. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve this request for a Public Monument/Building 
Review allowing the installation of a kayak launch on the municipal boat launch. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Plan Commission Memo; Application; Project Information 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  City Engineer’s Office 
  101 N. Main Street 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

1 
 

REQUEST FOR PUBLIC MONUMENT/BUILDING REVIEW  
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
DATE: November 22, 2022 
 
PROPERTY ADDRESSES: 5 Mechanic St. 
 
PARCEL NUMBER: N/A 
 
OWNER: City of Fort Atkinson 
 
APPLICANT: Dakota Friend 

 
FILE NUMBER: PMR-2022-02 
 
EXISTING ZONING: N/A 
 
EXISTING LAND USE: Boat Launch 
 
REQUESTED USES: Kayak Launch 
 

 

REQUEST OVERVIEW:  
Dakota Friend wishes to install a kayak launch on the 
municipal boat launch for his Eagle Scout Project. The 
launch will allow for loading and unloading of kayaks 
at the municipal dock. Mr Friend will provide a brief 
presentation to the Planning Commission outlining his 
proposal. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 
Public notice is not required for the Public Monument 
Review process.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN (2019): 
N/A 
 
PUBLIC MONUMENT PURPOSE:  
One of the objectives of the Public Monument/Building Review process is to identify and explain the 
public purpose of a proposed public monument/improvement to ensure that it serves the community 
as a whole, not just an individual or group.  
 
MAINTENANCE PLAN:  
Another objective of the Public Monument/Building Review process is to identify the short and long-
term maintenance needs of the monument or building and properly plan for them, with the hope 
that all future maintenance, repair, and replacement of structures does not fall onto the City. Dakota 
will fund raise and install the kayak launch as part of his project. The City will then install and remove 
the launch along with the other municipal piers at this location going forward.  
 
 



Request for Public Monument/Building Review 
PMR-2022-01 
July 26, 2022 

2 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends that the Plan Commission review the application and recommend that the City 
Council approve this request allowing the installation of the kayak launch on the municipal boat 
launch. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
PowerPoint; Application 









Dakota Friend - Eagle Project
Kayak Launch









Agenda
City of Fort Atkinson 

City Manager’s Office 
101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: December 6, 2022 

TO: Fort Atkinson City Council 

FROM:  Paul Christensen, Wastewater Superintendent 

RE: Review and Possible Action Related to the Emergency Replacement and 
Rebuild of Digester Blower #2 

BACKGROUND 
The Aerobic Digester system consists of three aerated digesters, each with a dedicated blower. 
The digester system is used for final stabilization of all of the biosolids produced by the 
treatment processes. Biosolids are then dewatered and applied to area farmland. 

The blowers have an expected life of 7 – 10 years, but under lighter loading can last longer. 
Blowers #2 & #3 are 11 and 10 years old, respectively.  

DISCUSSION 
On November 16th blower #2 failed. After troubleshooting with the manufacturer, staff 
determined that blower #2 suffered a major failure and would need rebuilding if possible. 

Although each blower and digester are a separate pair, several years ago cross connections 
were made to the air discharge piping to allow for emergency operation. This allows us to share 
air from blower #1 to digesters #1 & #2, but this is a stop-gap measure at best. The digesters 
cannot be operated this way long term. 

The best approach to get the digesters back to normal operation is to replace blower #2 with a 
new blower core, return the failed blower to the manufacturer for rebuilding (if possible); and 
then store the rebuilt blower for eventual replacement of blower #3. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
Aerzen is the manufacturer of the blowers and the staff is working directly with them for 
replacement and rebuilding of blower #2. Staff received the following quotes (attached) for the 
replacement of blower #2, and the subsequent rebuilding of the failed blower for future 
replacement of blower #3. 

Blower Replacement Core Including Installation $64,408.65 

Blower Rebuilding of Failed Blower  $26,107.82 



 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the purchase of the blower replacement core 
including installation and startup for the cost $64,408.65 as an emergency purchase. Staff 
further recommends that the City Council authorize the rebuilding of blower #2 (as a backup for 
blower #3) for the cost of $26,107.82 from Aerzen USA Corporation of Coatesville, PA. 
 
Funding for this project will come from the Utility Equipment Replacement Fund. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Aerzen Service Orders and Purchase Orders  



Aerzen USA Corporation
City of Fort Atkinson WW Utility 108 Independence Way
Att.: Jacob Fiene Coatesville, PA 19320-1653
1600 Farmco Ln USA
FORT ATKINSON, WI  53538  

order-usa@aerzen.com
www.aerzenusa.com
Phone: 610-380-0244

Service Return Material Auth.

Order No.: SEO-22-005133/  0 Page 1 / 2
Date: 11/21/22
Planned Delivery Date 12/30/22
Salesperson: Joel Schomo
Handled by: Ryan Craddock

Payment Terms: Net 30 days
Shipment Terms: DAP DELIVERED AT PLACE BUYER UNLOADS NAMED 

PLACE
Shipping Agent: BEST WAY AERZEN SELECTS CARRIER

Your account no.: 21-04694
Phone number: +19203979917
E-Mail: jfiene@fortatkinsonwi.gov
Your order number: 221391
Sourcequote No: SEQ-22-005267

Standard Overhaul

Serial No. 1063288                Service Items   SEI-007894_S        
Item No.: 035144000, D 98 S
Pos. Item No. Quantity Unit of M. Unit Price Line Amount

Description USD USD
1           0.00           0.00

Incoming Freight to Coatesville, PA 
INSP-BLOWER-LG 1 each       1,000.00       1,000.00
Machine Inspection
Standard Service
OH-DH-D098S 1 each      25,107.82      25,107.82
Standard Overhaul, D 98S
Standard Service

1           0.00           0.00
Outgoing Freight to Fort Atkinson, WI 
Total / Service Item D 98 S      26,107.82

Remittance email
SWIFT
Account No
Routing
Bank

USD Payments - ACH/Wire

021000021
350056393
CHASUS33
remittance-usa@aerzen.com

JP Morgan Chase
PO Box 21920
New York, NY 10087-1920
USA

Aerzen USA Corp
USD Payments - Lockbox

Intermediary Bank: COBADEFF
150113606800EUR
COBAUS3X
remittance-usa@aerzen.com

Commerzbank AG
EUR Payments - Wire



Order No.: SEO-22-005133/  0 Page 2 / 2

Total USD Excl. TAX      26,107.82
Tax Amount USD           0.00
Total USD Incl. TAX      26,107.82

Ship-to Address:
City of Fort Atkinson WW Utility
1600 Farmco Ln
FORT ATKINSON, WI  53538

Best regards,

Ryan Craddock
Aerzen USA Corporation

Remittance email
SWIFT
Account No
Routing
Bank

USD Payments - ACH/Wire

021000021
350056393
CHASUS33
remittance-usa@aerzen.com

JP Morgan Chase
PO Box 21920
New York, NY 10087-1920
USA

Aerzen USA Corp
USD Payments - Lockbox

Intermediary Bank: COBADEFF
150113606800EUR
COBAUS3X
remittance-usa@aerzen.com

Commerzbank AG
EUR Payments - Wire



Aerzen USA Corporation
City of Fort Atkinson WW Utility 108 Independence Way
Att.: Jacob Fiene Coatesville, PA 19320-1653
1600 Farmco Ln USA
FORT ATKINSON, WI  53538  

order-usa@aerzen.com
www.aerzenusa.com
Phone: 610-380-0244

Order Confirmation 

Order No.: SEO-22-005132/  0 Page 1 / 2
Date: 11/21/22
Planned Delivery Date 12/09/22
Salesperson: Joel Schomo
Handled by: Martha Padilla

Payment Terms: Net 30 days
Shipment Terms: DAP DELIVERED AT PLACE BUYER UNLOADS NAMED 

PLACE
Shipping Agent: BEST WAY AERZEN SELECTS CARRIER

Your account no.: 21-04694
Phone number: +19203979917
E-Mail: jfiene@fortatkinsonwi.gov
Your order number: 221390
Sourcequote No: SEQ-22-005265

On-Site Service
Pos. Item No. Quantity Unit of M. Unit Price Line Amount

Description USD USD
3       2,100.00       6,300.00

On-Site Service
280 MILES           1.38         386.40

Mileage
Total / Service Item On-Site Service       6,686.40

Serial No. 1063288                Service Items   SEI-007894_S        
Item No.: 035144000, D 98 S

Item No.: 035272000, Delta Hybrid D98S
Pos. Item No. Quantity Unit of M. Unit Price Line Amount

Description USD USD
035272000 1 each      55,795.54      55,795.54
Delta Hybrid D98S

Remittance email
SWIFT
Account No
Routing
Bank

USD Payments - ACH/Wire

021000021
350056393
CHASUS33
remittance-usa@aerzen.com

JP Morgan Chase
PO Box 21920
New York, NY 10087-1920
USA

Aerzen USA Corp
USD Payments - Lockbox

Intermediary Bank: COBADEFF
150113606800EUR
COBAUS3X
remittance-usa@aerzen.com

Commerzbank AG
EUR Payments - Wire



Order No.: SEO-22-005132/  0 Page 2 / 2

181316000 1 each       1,893.91       1,893.91
V-Belt Pulley
152324000 1 each          32.80          32.80
Shaft Nut

1           0.00           0.00
Shipping - PP & Add
Total / Service Item Delta Hybrid D98S      57,722.25

Total USD Excl. TAX      64,408.65
Tax Amount USD           0.00
Total USD Incl. TAX      64,408.65

Ship-to Address:
City of Fort Atkinson WW Utility
Ron
1600 Farmco Ln
FORT ATKINSON, WI  53538

Best regards,

Martha Padilla
Aerzen USA Corporation

Remittance email
SWIFT
Account No
Routing
Bank

USD Payments - ACH/Wire

021000021
350056393
CHASUS33
remittance-usa@aerzen.com

JP Morgan Chase
PO Box 21920
New York, NY 10087-1920
USA

Aerzen USA Corp
USD Payments - Lockbox

Intermediary Bank: COBADEFF
150113606800EUR
COBAUS3X
remittance-usa@aerzen.com

Commerzbank AG
EUR Payments - Wire















Agenda
City of Fort Atkinson 

City Manager’s Office 
101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: December 6, 2022 

TO: Fort Atkinson City Council 

FROM:  Paul Christensen, Wastewater Superintendent 

RE: Review and possible action relating to Septage Pump #1 and Associated Piping 
Replacement 

BACKGROUND 
The 2022 CIP includes $40,000 for the replacement of Septage Pump #1. The original purpose 
of the septage pump system was to pump trucked in septic and holding tank waste from a 
storage tank into the plant influent flow. As the total gallons of this waste type increased over 
time, and with the storage tank limited to about 11,000 gallons, it became necessary to use a 
different discharge point for septage.  

This system was transitioned to use for other specialty waste types. Some of these waste types 
were very low pH such as onion leachate from a local industrial source, and currently sweet 
corn silage leachate that is used for the benefit of the biological phosphorus removal process. 
The corrosive nature of these wastes has caused the corrosion of the pumps, suction piping, 
and discharge piping. 

DISCUSSION 
The original plan for this CIP item was to purchase a pump better suited to the wastes for which 
it’s being used, and to replace some suction and discharge piping. The current Phase II project 
includes the ongoing by-pass of the raw influent pumping system. This affords us the 
opportunity to replace all of the corroded piping and to re-route the discharge point of the 
pumps to a closer and improved connection location. New discharge piping will be stainless 
steel. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
We received the following proposals for the pump replacement: 

- William/Reid, Ltd – LSM Pump $17,547.00 

- Drydon Equipment – Verder Pump $43,750.00 

- LAI, Ltd – Bredl Pump $29,600.00 



 
 

 
 
We received the following proposals for the installation and piping: 
 

- Sabel Mechanical     $52,192.30 
 

- Staab Construction  Not to Exceed $40,000.00 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the purchase of the pump from William/Reid Ltd. – LSM Pump for the cost of 
$17,547.00. Staff further recommends the pump installation and piping modifications from 
Staab Construction for an amount not to exceed $40,000.00 for a total cost of $57,547.00 
 
Funding for this project will come from the CIP at $40,000 and the remainder from the Utility 
equipment repair account in the amount of $17,547. The Utility equipment repair account 
currently has approximately $36,500 remaining for 2022. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Pump replacement and labor proposals 



1800 Laemle Ave | Marshfield, WI 54449 | 715-387-8429

Dated:

Bid No.: 1623

Phone: 920-397-9917 Email:

RE:  

REVISED

• Supply of Electricity for construction purposes.

• Supply of Restroom facilities.

• Contaminated soil & water remediation and/or removal.  If contaminated water is encountered, owner is responsible for proper disposal costs.

• Asbestos & lead abatement.

• Temporary bypassing and/or treatment

Owner Responsibilities:

• Supply of potable and/or non-potable water supply.

We base our price on removal of existing piping and installing new 316LSS piping/fittings according to drawings provided by Donohue.  Any new valves, 

fittings, fasteners/gaskets and other appurtences called out in plans will be provided.  

At minimum we exclude the following:

• State/Federal Prevailing Wages, Performance & Payment Bond.

• Sales tax is excluded from this proposal. 

• Quality control concrete, soil, water leakage, and/or lead & asbestos testing or survey.

The undersigned, having familiarized ourself with the plans, specifications, and local conditions affecting the cost of the work, hereby propose 

to furnish all labor, material, necessary tools, expendable equipment, and all utility and transportation services necessary to complete the 

following in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices. This proposal will not be withdrawn for a period of thirty (30) days after 

proposal date.

BASE BID TIME AND MATERIALS-NOT TO EXCEED $40,000.00

pchristensen@fortatkinsonwi.gov

Ft. Atkinson WWTF Pump/Piping

PROPOSAL

Paul Christensen 11/15/2022

City of Fort Atkinson

1600 Farmco Lane

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538

F:\BID\Bid Folders\_Pending Bids\B1623 Ft. Atkinson WWTF Pump & Piping  AB\

7xxx Important Information Sheet, Proposal,Invoicings 1 of 3
11/15/2022

6:48 AM



Contracts:  Please note this proposal is for bid submission reference only and is not a formal contract between buyer and seller.  A mutual agreed upon 

contract form will be selected between buyer and seller after Staab receives written confirmation accepting this proposal. At that time both parties will review 

agreeable contract terms and conditions as it relates to this proposal document. 

Insurance:  Owner agrees to carry property insurance (Builders Risk) upon the entire work at the site in the amount of the full replacement cost.  Staab 

Construction will maintain liability, automobile, and workman’s compensation insurance.

Professional liability insurance will be provided to cover claims for negligent professional services performed by Staab Construction during the term of this 

agreement.  Staab Construction will not be required to provide professional design services unless specifically required by the Contract Documents for a 

portion of the work.  Limits of professional liability insurance is $2,000,000 per claim and an annual aggregate of $2,000,000.

In order to secure performance of its payment and other obligations under this agreement, owner shall provide contractor with financial security in such form 

as shall be reasonably acceptable to contractor.  Such security shall be delivered to and approved by contractor within thirty (30) days of the effective date of 

this agreement.  In the event that owner does not provide acceptable financial security by such date, contractor may at its election immediately or within thirty 

(30) days thereof terminate this agreement in which case this agreement shall be of no further force or effect except that owner shall be and remain fully liable 

for the cost of the work theretofore incurred by contractor in connection with this project together with 15% percent of such expenditures (to cover 

contractor's profit and overhead) regardless of when such expenditures were incurred and regardless of whether such expenditures ultimately proved to be of 

any value or use to owner. 

Price Escalators:  If there is an increase in the actual cost of labor or materials charged to the Contractor in excess of 5% subsequent to making this 

Agreement, the price set forth in this Agreement shall be increased without the need for a written change order or amendment to the contract to reflect the 

price increase and additional direct cost to the contractor.  Contractor will submit written documentation of the increased charges to the Prime 

Contractor/Owner upon request.  As an additional remedy, if the actual cost of any line item increases more than 10% subsequent to the making of this 

Agreement, Contractor, at its sole discretion, may terminate the contract for convenience.

Contract Cancellation:  Upon written notification for any such nature that our contract is to be terminated, Staab Construction will stop work immediately.  

Costs incurred will be billed for reimbursement utilizing the rates noted in "Changed Conditions/Contract Adjustment Rates".  

Limited Warranty:  Unless otherwise noted on the face hereof, Staab Construction goods, auxiliaries, and parts thereof are warranted per contract agreement 

documents, against defective workmanship and material for a period of twelve (12) months from date of substantial project completion with the original user.  

If the goods or services do not conform to the warranty stated above, then as Buyer's sole remedy, Staab shall, at Staab's option, either repair or replace the 

defective goods or reperform defective services not to exceed the value of the original contract.  If applicable, Staab will assign to Buyer all warranties 

applicable to any portion of the Work or Materials obtained from third parties, or if not assignable, will assert such warranties on behalf of buyer's request.  

Warranty shall not apply to any work which that has been subjected to improper or excessive operating conditions, misapplications, accidents, neglect, 

improper repair or alteration, normal wear and tear, corrosion, abrasion or erosion, abuse, defects resulting from Buyer's specifications or designs, or any 

unauthorized disassembly or rework by others.

Payment Terms:  Invoiced upon completion and/or monthly and payable within 30 days from date of invoice.  18% Annual interest added to accounts over 

30 days.  Where retainage is applicable, client may withhold a maximum of 5%, not to exceed the value of work to be completed.  Staab requires full retainage 

release & final payment within 60 days of completion for our scope of work.

Schedule:  Staab will begin executing contract obligations within 30 calendar days after we receive a notice to proceed and will be completed in 

approximately 2 calendar days.  Normal work hours are Monday thru Thursday, 10 hour days per week straight time labor rate.  Compressed schedule 

compensation is assessed at 1.5 times after 10 hours each day and/or beyond a 40 hour work week.  Holiday pay compensation is assessed at 2 times the 

hourly base rate.  Compensation adjustments are based on the rates noted below under "Changed Conditions".

Changed Conditions / Contract Adjustment Rates:  If subsurface, latent, and/or unknown physical conditions differ from those indicated in this agreement or 

in documents made available by Contractor, Engineer, or Owner, Staab Construction shall be entitled to an equitable change in contract price and an extension 

of the project completion date for such changed conditions. Extra work and associated costs will proceed only upon written orders, and will become an extra 

charge over and above this base bid price.  Such additional charges will be based on actual cost required to complete the work. Rates for time & material cost 

plus proposals are available upon request.

Clarifications:

• After meeting on site, several valves will be re-used and materials used from current inventory which results in lower cost.  

F:\BID\Bid Folders\_Pending Bids\B1623 Ft. Atkinson WWTF Pump & Piping  AB\

7xxx Important Information Sheet, Proposal,Invoicings 2 of 3
11/15/2022

6:48 AM



Respectfully Submitted By:

STAAB CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION

Signature: Date:

GENERAL, MECHANICAL, EARTHWORK CONTRACTOR
•

Municipal & Industrial
•

The Contractor of Choice Improving Tomorrow’s Environment

(Printed name and title)

Andy Busscher Project Manager andy.busscher@staabco.com

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL - The prices, specifications, and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  You are authorized to do 

the work specified.  Payment will be made as outlined above.  This proposal will now be a binding contract.

AS REQUIRED BY THE WISCONSIN CONSTRUCTION LIEN LAW, THIS CONTRACTOR HEREBY NOTIFIES OWNER THAT PERSONS OR 

COMPANIES FURNISHING LABOR OR MATERIALS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION ON OWNER’S LAND MAY HAVE LIEN RIGHTS ON 

OWNER’S LAND AND BUILDINGS IF NOT PAID.  THOSE ENTITLED TO LIEN RIGHTS, IN ADDITION TO THE UNDERSIGNED 

CONTRACTOR, ARE THOSE WHO CONTRACT DIRECTLY WITH THE OWNER OR THOSE WHO GIVE THE OWNER NOTICE WITHIN SIXTY 

(60) DAYS AFTER THEY FIRST FURNISH LABOR OR MATERIALS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION.  ACCORDINGLY, OWNER PROBABLY WILL 

RECEIVE NOTICES FROM THOSE WHO FURNISH LABOR OR MATERIALS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION, AND SHOULD GIVE A COPY OF 

EACH NOTICE RECEIVED TO ITS MORTGAGE LENDER, IF ANY.  THIS CONTRACTOR AGREES TO COOPERATE WITH THE OWNER AND 

OWNER’S LENDER, IF ANY, TO SEE THAT ALL POTENTIAL LIEN CLAIMANTS ARE DULY PAID.

F:\BID\Bid Folders\_Pending Bids\B1623 Ft. Atkinson WWTF Pump & Piping  AB\

7xxx Important Information Sheet, Proposal,Invoicings 3 of 3
11/15/2022

6:48 AM



  

 
 

Quote No. Q10255 

Date: Nov 1, 2022
 

 
 

 
 
W 3150 Co Rd H, Fond du Lac, WI 54937

920-581-5810  

www.sabelmechanical.com

Sabel Contact: Brad Parkhurst

Email: bparkhurst@sabelmechanical.com

 

 
Sabel Mechanical LLC

 

Customer Billing Information

FORT ATKINSON

101 N Main St, FORT ATKINSON,

WI, 53538-1896

Job Site Information

Fort Atkinson WWTP 

1600 Farmco Ln, Fort Atkinson,

WI, 53538

Contact and Other Information

Contact: Paul Chrstensen

Phone: 920-397-9917

Email: pchristensen@fortatkinson

wi.gov

 
Sabel Mechanical is pleased to submit this proposal for:

 
Scope of Work

 
1. Septage Pump and Piping Replacement  

Labor, Equipment, and Materials to perform the following:





-Demo exiisting suction piping up to 6" plug valve


-Demo 4" piping from pumps to 16" header pipe on ground floor


-Install new 2" peristaltic pump


-New 6" 304 SS suction header and 2" suction piping to new pump


-New 2" 304 SS discharge piping from new pump to 16" header pipe on ground floor


-New 16" x 2" SS saddle


-New 16" x 4" SS saddle


-New 2" SS ball valves and check valves


-Re-use existing 6" and 4" plug and check valves





Excludes:


-New pump base


-Electrical installation


-By-pass pump if required

 

Quote Total: $52,192.30

Estimate valid until: Dec 1, 2022

 
 

Customer Signature: ____________________________________  Date ____________________

 
Customer Name (Print) ___________________________________________

 

P.O. #: ________________________

https://pdf-internal/www.sabelmechanical.com


 
Due to the fluctuating material pricing and availability, quote is valid thru end of today’s business day, Pricing may have to be

adjusted at time of purchase and will be reflected when project is invoiced











KEY PLAN

   

010-R-5A

1

PCM

EPE

KJB

Drawing No.

Designed By

Checked By

Filename

Approved By

Project No.

Drawn By

R
ev

is
io

n
N

um
be

r
R

ev
is

io
n 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

D
ra

w
n

By
D

at
e

C
he

ck
ed

By

Sheet No.

Project Date

C
IT
Y 
O
F 
FO

R
T 
A
TK

IN
SO

N
W
W
TP

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
PH

A
SE

 II
FO

R
T 
A
TK

IN
SO

N
, W

IS
C
O
N
SI
N

13699

01/19/2021

NWC

010RP5A.DWG

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

B101
LOWER PUMP ROOM

D
O

W
N

CLASS I, DIVISION 1,
GROUP D

HAZARDOUS CLASSIFIED
LOCATION

WETWELL

16" RWW

B102
UPPER PUMP ROOM

B103
MCC ROOM

10-LCP-1-7

10-LCP-1-6

REMOVE EXISTING HOSE BIB

REMOVE 6" SPT PIPING AND
FITTINGS

REMOVE 3/4" W3 PIPING AND
FITTINGS

REMOVE 4" SPT PIPING

REMOVE 4" SPT PIPING AND
FITTINGS

REMOVE LEACHATE PUMP (BY OWNER)

GENERAL NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS, AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND/OR FABRICATION.

2. FULL TONE COMPONENTS TO BE REMOVED.

3. SAWCUT AND REMOVE CONCRETE TO THE LIMITS NOTED.  IN EXPOSED AREAS NOT
COVERED BY NEW CONSTRUCTION, REMOVE REINFORCEMENT AND EMBEDMENTS 1"
BEYOND FINISHED SURFACE AND PATCH SURFACE WITH PATCHING MORTAR TO
MATCH ADJACENT FINISHED SURFACE.

4. REMOVE CONCRETE ANCHORS, ANCHOR BOLTS, AND OTHER EMBEDMENTS FOR
MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT BEING REMOVED.  IN EXPOSED AREAS NOT COVERED
BY NEW CONSTRUCTION, REMOVE CONCRETE ANCHORS, ANCHOR BOLTS, AND
OTHER EMBEDMENTS 1" BEYOND FINISHED SURFACE AND PATCH SURFACE WITH
PATCHING MORTAR. FINISH SURFACE TO MATCH ADJACENT FINISHED SURFACE.

5. WHERE EQUIPMENT IS INDICATED TO BE REMOVED, REMOVE ALL ASSOCIATED
POWER AND CONTROL WIRING AND CONDUIT BACK TO SOURCE. REMOVE JUNCTION
BOXES AND PULL BOXES ASSOCIATED WITH THE REMOVED CONDUITS. WHERE
CONDUIT SYSTEM CONTAINS CIRCUITS TO OTHER EQUIPMENT THAT REMAINS,
RETAIN THESE CIRCUITS AND RELOCATE EXISTING CONDUIT AND EXTEND EXISTING
CIRCUITS AS REQUIRED FOR THE INSTALLATION OF NEW EQUIPMENT.

6. REMOVE ALL SUPPORTS ASSOCIATED WITH REMOVED PIPING, DUCTWORK,
CONDUIT, AND EQUIPMENT.  REMOVE RODS AND FASTENERS FROM CEILINGS,
FLOORS, AND WALLS WITH CARE.  WHERE SURFACE HAS BEEN MARRED, CHIPPED,
SPAWLED, ETC. AS A RESULT OF REMOVAL, PATCH SURFACE WITH PATCHING
MORTAR AND FINISH TO MATCH ADJACENT FINISHED SURFACE.

7. REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE PADS OF ANY EQUIPMENT BEING REMOVED.  REMOVE
CONCRETE REINFORCEMENT A MINIMUM OF 1" BEYOND FINISHED SURFACE AT ANY
LOCATION WHERE NEW CONCRETE PAD WILL NOT COVER ROUGH SURFACE OF
REMOVED PAD.  PATCH SURFACE WITH PATCHING MORTAR AND FINISH TO MATCH
ADJACENT FINISHED SURFACE.

8. WHERE OPENINGS ARE LEFT IN WALLS, SLABS, OR CEILINGS DUE TO REMOVED
PIPING, DUCTWORK, EQUIPMENT, OR OTHER WORK, PATCH OPENING TO MATCH
ADJACENT SURFACES UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.  THE PERIMETER OF OPENINGS
IN CONCRETE WALLS AND SLABS EXPOSED TO EARTH, WEATHER, OR WATER SHALL
BE LINED WITH A GASKET TYPE WATERSTOP PRIOR TO PATCHING OF THE WALL.
OPENINGS IN PRECAST CONCRETE ROOF MEMBERS ARE TO BE PATCHED WITH
CONCRETE AND DOWELED TO THE EXISTING ROOF MEMBERS UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE.  ROOFING SYSTEM SHALL BE PATCHED TO PREVENT ANY LEAKING AT
THE OPENING.

9. HAZARDOUS RATINGS IDENTIFIED ON THIS DRAWING INDICATE SPACES IN WHICH A
HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENT MAY GENERALLY EXIST. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO
SPACE ENVIRONMENT/HAZARDOUS RATING SCHEDULE IN 001 SERIES OF DRAWINGS
FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION EXPLAINING THE EXTENT AND ENVELOPE
ASSOCIATED WITH THESE HAZARDS.EXISTING FLOOR DRAIN

EL 780.62

REMOVE 4" SPT PIPINGREMOVE 4" SPT
PIPING

REMOVE 3/4" W3 PIPING UP TO TEE

ENLARGED INTERMEDIATE PLAN
1' 4'0

REMOVE LEACHATE PUMP (BY OWNER)

1

1

PLAN NOTES:
1. REMOVE AND RETAIN EXISTING 4" ECCENTRIC PLUG  VALVE AND 4" BALL CHECK

VALVE FOR RE-INSTALLATION. TURN OVER UNUSED VALVES TO OWNER.

REMOVE 4" SPT
PIPING

REMOVE
EXISTING

SADDLE

REMOVE 4" SPT
PIPING UP TO PLUG

VALVE



KEY PLAN

M
A
IN
 C
O
N
TR

O
L 
B
U
IL
D
IN
G

EN
LA

R
G
ED

 P
LA

N

010-R-6A

1

PCM

EPE

KJB

Drawing No.

Designed By

Checked By

Filename

Approved By

Project No.

Drawn By

R
ev

is
io

n
N

um
be

r
R

ev
is

io
n 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

D
ra

w
n

By
D

at
e

C
he

ck
ed

By

Sheet No.

Project Date

C
IT
Y 
O
F 
FO

R
T 
A
TK

IN
SO

N
W
W
TP

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
PH

A
SE

 II
FO

R
T 
A
TK

IN
SO

N
, W

IS
C
O
N
SI
N

13699

01/19/2021

NWC

010RP6A.DWG

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

131
MAINTENANCE

OFFICE

134
SAMPLER

PLATFORM

133
PARTS AND

SUPPLY
STORAGE

132
TOOL

STORAGE
CAGE

REMOVE EXISTING VALVE AND PIPE NIPPLE
LOCATED IN VERTICAL BELOW VALVE.

SEE                  FOR A PHOTO DETAIL.1
010-R-6A

PIPE NIPPLE
REMOVAL DETAIL 1
NTS 010-R-6A

REMOVE EXISTING VALVE AND PIPE NIPPLE

ENLARGED UPPER PLAN
1' 4'0

GENERAL NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS, AND ELEVATIONS

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND/OR FABRICATION.

2. FULL TONE COMPONENTS TO BE REMOVED.

3. SAWCUT AND REMOVE CONCRETE TO THE LIMITS NOTED.  IN EXPOSED AREAS NOT
COVERED BY NEW CONSTRUCTION, REMOVE REINFORCEMENT AND EMBEDMENTS 1"
BEYOND FINISHED SURFACE AND PATCH SURFACE WITH PATCHING MORTAR TO MATCH
ADJACENT FINISHED SURFACE.

4. REMOVE CONCRETE ANCHORS, ANCHOR BOLTS, AND OTHER EMBEDMENTS FOR MATERIALS
AND EQUIPMENT BEING REMOVED.  IN EXPOSED AREAS NOT COVERED BY NEW
CONSTRUCTION, REMOVE CONCRETE ANCHORS, ANCHOR BOLTS, AND OTHER
EMBEDMENTS 1" BEYOND FINISHED SURFACE AND PATCH SURFACE WITH PATCHING
MORTAR. FINISH SURFACE TO MATCH ADJACENT FINISHED SURFACE.

5. WHERE EQUIPMENT IS INDICATED TO BE REMOVED, REMOVE ALL ASSOCIATED POWER AND
CONTROL WIRING AND CONDUIT BACK TO SOURCE. REMOVE JUNCTION BOXES AND PULL
BOXES ASSOCIATED WITH THE REMOVED CONDUITS. WHERE CONDUIT SYSTEM CONTAINS
CIRCUITS TO OTHER EQUIPMENT THAT REMAINS, RETAIN THESE CIRCUITS AND RELOCATE
EXISTING CONDUIT AND EXTEND EXISTING CIRCUITS AS REQUIRED FOR THE INSTALLATION
OF NEW EQUIPMENT.

6. REMOVE ALL SUPPORTS ASSOCIATED WITH REMOVED PIPING, DUCTWORK, CONDUIT, AND
EQUIPMENT.  REMOVE RODS AND FASTENERS FROM CEILINGS, FLOORS, AND WALLS WITH
CARE.  WHERE SURFACE HAS BEEN MARRED, CHIPPED, SPAWLED, ETC. AS A RESULT OF
REMOVAL, PATCH SURFACE WITH PATCHING MORTAR AND FINISH TO MATCH ADJACENT
FINISHED SURFACE.

7. REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE PADS OF ANY EQUIPMENT BEING REMOVED.  REMOVE
CONCRETE REINFORCEMENT A MINIMUM OF 1" BEYOND FINISHED SURFACE AT ANY
LOCATION WHERE NEW CONCRETE PAD WILL NOT COVER ROUGH SURFACE OF REMOVED
PAD.  PATCH SURFACE WITH PATCHING MORTAR AND FINISH TO MATCH ADJACENT FINISHED
SURFACE.

8. WHERE OPENINGS ARE LEFT IN WALLS, SLABS, OR CEILINGS DUE TO REMOVED PIPING,
DUCTWORK, EQUIPMENT, OR OTHER WORK, PATCH OPENING TO MATCH ADJACENT
SURFACES UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.  THE PERIMETER OF OPENINGS IN CONCRETE
WALLS AND SLABS EXPOSED TO EARTH, WEATHER, OR WATER SHALL BE LINED WITH A
GASKET TYPE WATERSTOP PRIOR TO PATCHING OF THE WALL.  OPENINGS IN PRECAST
CONCRETE ROOF MEMBERS ARE TO BE PATCHED WITH CONCRETE AND DOWELED TO THE
EXISTING ROOF MEMBERS UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.  ROOFING SYSTEM SHALL BE
PATCHED TO PREVENT ANY LEAKING AT THE OPENING.

9. HAZARDOUS RATINGS IDENTIFIED ON THIS DRAWING INDICATE SPACES IN WHICH A
HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENT MAY GENERALLY EXIST. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO SPACE
ENVIRONMENT/HAZARDOUS RATING SCHEDULE IN 001 SERIES OF DRAWINGS FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION EXPLAINING THE EXTENT AND ENVELOPE ASSOCIATED WITH
THESE HAZARDS.

REMOVE 3" SPT
PIPING AND

FITTINGS



KEY PLAN

M
A
IN
 C
O
N
TR

O
L 
B
U
IL
D
IN
G

EN
LA

R
G
ED

 P
LA

N

010-M-5A

1

PCM

EPE

KJB

Drawing No.

Designed By

Checked By

Filename

Approved By

Project No.

Drawn By

R
ev

is
io

n
N

um
be

r
R

ev
is

io
n 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

D
ra

w
n

By
D

at
e

C
he

ck
ed

By

Sheet No.

Project Date

C
IT
Y 
O
F 
FO

R
T 
A
TK

IN
SO

N
W
W
TP

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
PH

A
SE

 II
FO

R
T 
A
TK

IN
SO

N
, W

IS
C
O
N
SI
N

13699

01/19/2021

NWC

010MP5A.DWG

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

ENLARGED INTERMEDIATE PLAN

B101
LOWER PUMP ROOM

D
O

W
N

CLASS I, DIVISION 1,
GROUP D

HAZARDOUS CLASSIFIED
LOCATION

WETWELL

16" RWW

B102
UPPER PUMP ROOM

B103
MCC ROOM

10-LCP-1-7

10-LCP-1-6

1' 4'0

GENERAL NOTES:

4" SPT
℄ 790.37 ±

6" SPT
℄ 782.09 ±

6" TEE

6" X 2"
CONCENTRIC

REDUCER

2" BLIND
FLANGE ON TEE

2" SPT

2" PLUG VALVE

2" HOSE PUMP, PROVIDED BY
OWNER, INSTALLED BY
CONTRACTOR

2" SUCTION

2" DISCHARGE
ELEVATION

6" PLUG VALVE

6" FLEXIBLE CONNECTOR WITH RESTRAINING RODS

4" 90 DEG ELBOW

4" 90 DEG
ELBOW

4" RCY
℄ 788.70 ±

2" SPT
℄ 783.91 ±

EXISTING FLOOR DRAIN
EL 780.62

2" SPT
℄ 783.91 ±

2" SPT 90 DEG ELBOW

2" TEE

2" 90 DEG ELBOW

2" SPT
℄ 782.09 ±

2" SPT
℄ 783.91 ±

2" 45 DEG
ELBOW 2" 45 DEG

ELBOW

2" 90 DEG
ELBOW UP

4" 90 DEG ELBOW UP

4" 90 DEG
ELBOW

PROVIDE 3/4" PLUG AT TEE

CONNECT 4" SPT PIPING
INTO EXISTING RCY

PIPING. MODIFY
EXISTING 4" RCY PIPING

AS REQUIRED TO
INSTALL.

4" PLUG VALVE

1. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING
CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS, AND ELEVATIONS PRIOR
TO CONSTRUCTION AND/OR FABRICATION.

2. REFER TO 001 SERIES OF DRAWINGS FOR THE
SPACE ENVIRONMENT/HAZARDOUS RATING
SCHEDULE REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL
CONDITIONS ANTICIPATED WITHIN EACH SPACE AND
ALLOWABLE MATERIALS OF CONSTRUCTION TO BE
USED WITHIN EACH SPACE.

3. HAZARDOUS RATINGS IDENTIFIED ON THIS DRAWING
INDICATE SPACES IN WHICH A HAZARDOUS
ENVIRONMENT MAY GENERALLY EXIST.
CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO SPACE
ENVIRONMENT/HAZARDOUS RATING SCHEDULE IN
001 SERIES OF DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION EXPLAINING THE EXTENT AND
ENVELOPE ASSOCIATED WITH THESE HAZARDS.

1 PLAN NOTES:
1. PROVIDE NEW STAINLESS STEEL SADDLE AND 4"

BLIND FLANGE.

MODIFY EXISTING CONCRETE
PUMP EQUIPMENT PAD AS
REQUIRED FOR HOSE PUMP
INSTALLATION

A
01

0-
M

-5
A

A
01

0-
M

-5
A

SECTION A
010-M-5A

1' 2'0

4" PLUG VALVE

4" BALL CHECK VALVE

4" 90 DEG ELBOW

4" SPT
℄ 790.37 ±

4" X 3" REDUCER

3" FLEX CONNECTOR

PROVIDE 4"
BLIND

FLANGE AT
PLUG VALVE



KEY PLAN

M
A
IN
 C
O
N
TR

O
L 
B
U
IL
D
IN
G

EN
LA

R
G
ED

 P
LA

N

010-M-6A

1

PCM

EPE

KJB

Drawing No.

Designed By

Checked By

Filename

Approved By

Project No.

Drawn By

R
ev

is
io

n
N

um
be

r
R

ev
is

io
n 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

D
ra

w
n

By
D

at
e

C
he

ck
ed

By

Sheet No.

Project Date

C
IT
Y 
O
F 
FO

R
T 
A
TK

IN
SO

N
W
W
TP

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
PH

A
SE

 II
FO

R
T 
A
TK

IN
SO

N
, W

IS
C
O
N
SI
N

13699

01/19/2021

NWC

010MP6A.DWG

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

131
MAINTENANCE

OFFICE

134
SAMPLER

PLATFORM

133
PARTS AND

SUPPLY
STORAGE

132
TOOL

STORAGE
CAGE

ENLARGED UPPER PLAN
1' 4'0

2" SADDLE

2" SPT
℄ 799.20 ±

2" 90 DEG ELBOW

TAP 2" SPT LINE
INTO EXISTING

16" RWW

GENERAL NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING

CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS, AND ELEVATIONS PRIOR
TO CONSTRUCTION AND/OR FABRICATION.

2. REFER TO 001 SERIES OF DRAWINGS FOR THE
SPACE ENVIRONMENT/HAZARDOUS RATING
SCHEDULE REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL
CONDITIONS ANTICIPATED WITHIN EACH SPACE AND
ALLOWABLE MATERIALS OF CONSTRUCTION TO BE
USED WITHIN EACH SPACE.

3. HAZARDOUS RATINGS IDENTIFIED ON THIS DRAWING
INDICATE SPACES IN WHICH A HAZARDOUS
ENVIRONMENT MAY GENERALLY EXIST.
CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO SPACE
ENVIRONMENT/HAZARDOUS RATING SCHEDULE IN
001 SERIES OF DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION EXPLAINING THE EXTENT AND
ENVELOPE ASSOCIATED WITH THESE HAZARDS.

PROVIDE 3"
BLIND FLANGE

ON EXISTING
PIPE BOSS



Agenda
City of Fort Atkinson 

City Manager’s Office 
101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: December 6, 2022 

TO: Fort Atkinson City Council  

FROM:  Andy Selle, P.E., City Engineer/Director of Public Works 

RE: Review and possible action relating to a Certified Survey Map for the property 
located at 309 Bluff St. 

BACKGROUND 
The property owner would like combine 3 separate lots into a single lot. The location is on Bluff 
St in Fort Atkinson, and is used for the school and parsonage of the St Paul’s Church 
community.   

DISCUSSION 
The proposal “cleans up” old property lines no longer governing the existing use. The only 
comment is for the applicant to note the proposed stormwater basin as a permanent easement 
for such on the property. Staff reviewed and have no concerns about the consolidation. The 
parcel will continue the institutional use noted in the Comprehensive Plan.  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
There is no financial impact to the City. 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Plan Commission recommended approval of the Certified Survey Map. Staff recommends 
the City Council approve this Certified Survey Map.  

ATTACHMENTS 
Plan Commission Memo; Certified Survey Map Application, CSM 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  City Engineer’s Office 
  101 N. Main Street 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

1 
 

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP (EXTRA-TERRITORIAL) 
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
DATE: November 22, 2022 
 
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 309 Bluff St 
 
PARCEL NUMBER: 226-0514-0324-023, 
..022, ..045 
 
OWNER: St Paul’s Church 
 
APPLICANT: St Paul’s Church 
 

FILE NUMBER: CSM-2022-08 
 
EXISTING ZONING:  Institutional 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Institutional 
 
EXISTING LAND USE: School / Parsonage 
 
REQUESTED USES: N/A 
 

 

REQUEST OVERVIEW: 
The property owner would like combine 3 separate lots into a single lot. The location is on Bluff St in 
Fort Atkinson, and is used for the school and parsonage of the St Paul’s Church community.   
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 
Public Notice is not required. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN (2019): 
The subject parcel will continue the institutional use noted in the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
OFFICIAL MAP (2022): 
The City’s Official Map does not have any locations affecting the parcel.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
The proposal “cleans up” old property lines no longer governing the existing use. The only comment 
is for the applicant to note the proposed stormwater basin as a permanent easement for such on the 
property. Staff reviewed and have no concerns about the consolidation.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend the City Council approve this preliminary 
Certified Survey Map combining three lots into a single lot, with the addition of the stormwater 
easement noted above.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Preliminary CSM Application and Materials 
 



Certified Survey Map 
November 22, 2022 
CSM-2022-08 
 

2 
 

  
Figure 1: Lot location 



lisav
Typewritten Text
920-536-5349





ARCHITECTS ● ENGINEERS ● SURVEYORS

Always aBetter Plan

100 Camelot Drive
Fond Du Lac, WI 54935
Phone: (920) 926-9800
www.EXCELENGINEER.com

JOB NO. 2188360



SHEET 2 OF 3 SHEETS 
 

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. ______ 
 

LOT 2 & PART OF LOTS 1, 3, 4 & 6, BLOCK 1, CLARA A. 
MCPHERSON’S ADDITION & PART OF LOT 2, BLOCK 1, MAY & 
METCALF’S ADDITION, LOCATED IN PART OF THE SE 1/4 OF 

THE NW 1/4, SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST,  
CITY OF FORT ATKINSON, JEFFERSON COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

 
 
 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE 

 
I, Ryan Wilgreen, Professional Land Surveyor, hereby certify: 

 
That I have surveyed, divided and mapped a parcel of land described below. 

       
That I have made such Certified Survey under the direction of St. Pauls Evangelical Lutheran 

Church Congregation bounded and described as follows: 
  

Lot 2 and part of Lots 1, 3, 4 and 6 in Block 1 of Clara A. McPherson’s Addition to Fort Atkinson and 
part of Lot 2 in Block 1 of May & Metcalf’s Addition to Fort Atkinson, located in part of the Southeast 1/4 of 
the Northwest 1/4 of Section 3, Township 5 North, Range 14 East, City of Fort Atkinson, Jefferson County, 
Wisconsin being more particularly described as follows: 

 
Commencing at the Southwest corner of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 3; thence North 01°-17’-

40” West along the West line of said Northwest 1/4, a distance of 397.19 feet; thence North 88°-42’-20” 

East, a distance of 1,355.51 feet to the East right-of-way line of Bluff Street, said point being the point of 
beginning; thence North 01°-05’-47” West along said East line, a distance of 510.88 feet to the Southerly 

right-of-way line of Milwaukee Avenue East; thence South 75°-44’-01” East along said Southerly line, a 

distance of 175.88 feet; thence South 00°-08’-42” East, a distance of 239.45 feet; thence North 88°-56’-12” 

East, a distance of 195.50 feet; thence South 00°-08’-42” East, a distance of 437.00 feet to the Easterly 

extension of the North line of Lot 12 of said McPherson’s Addition; thence South 88°-56’-12” West along 

said Easterly extension, said North line and the North line of Lot 7 of said McPherson’s Addition, a distance 
of 183.50 feet; thence North 00°-08’-42” West, a distance of 132.00 feet to the Easterly extension of the 

North line of Lot 5 of said McPherson’s Addition; thence South 88°-56’-12” West along said Easterly 

extension and said North line, a distance of 70.56 feet; thence North 01°-05’-35” West, a distance of 80.00 

feet; thence South 88°-56’-12” West, a distance of 102.00 feet to the point of beginning and containing 

3.891 acres (169,485 sq. ft.) of land more or less. 
  

That such is a correct representation of all the exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land 
division thereof made. 
 

That I have fully complied with the provisions of Section 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the 
Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Fort Atkinson in surveying, dividing and mapping the same. 

 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Ryan Wilgreen, P.L.S. No. S-2647 
ryan.w@excelengineer.com 
Excel Engineering, Inc. 
Fond du Lac, Wisconsin 54935 
Project Number: 2188360 



SHEET 3 OF 3 SHEETS 
 

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. ______ 
 

LOT 2 & PART OF LOTS 1, 3, 4 & 6, BLOCK 1, CLARA A. 
MCPHERSON’S ADDITION & PART OF LOT 2, BLOCK 1, MAY & 
METCALF’S ADDITION, LOCATED IN PART OF THE SE 1/4 OF 

THE NW 1/4, SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST,  
CITY OF FORT ATKINSON, JEFFERSON COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

 
 
 

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE 
 

St. Pauls Evangelical Lutheran Church Congregation, as owner, does hereby certify that it has 
caused the land described on this map to be surveyed, divided and mapped as represented on this map.  

 
St. Pauls Evangelical Lutheran Church Congregation does further certify that this map is required by 

s.236.10 or s.236.12 to be submitted to the following for approval or objection: 
 

1. City of Fort Atkinson 
 

  WITNESS the hand and seal of said owner this _______ day of _________________, 2022. 
 
St. Pauls Evangelical Lutheran Church  Congregation        

 
 
 

______________________________________________________ 
 
 
___________________________, __________________________             
(Print)             (Title) 
 
 
STATE OF ____________________  )   
 
______________________COUNTY )SS  
 

Personally came before me this ______ day of ______________, 2022, the above named 
 
_______________________ to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged the same. 
 
       ______________________________________ 
 
       Notary Public, _______________ County, ____ 
 
       My Commission Expires:__________________ 

 
 
 
 

       
CITY PLAN COMMISSION APPROVAL 

 
Resolved that the above Certified Survey Map is hereby approved by the City of Fort Atkinson Plan  

Commission on this ________ day of ________________________, 2022. 

 
 
______________________________________  
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Manager   

 


	Agenda
	Consent Packet.pdf
	11.15.22 Council Minutes
	11.15.22 Police and Fire Commission Minutes
	11.17.22 Sex Offender Residence Board Minutes
	11.22.22 Plan Commission Minutes
	Citizen Service Form Loren Gray
	Special Event: Driftskippers Snowmobile Club
	Application
	Explanation
	Map
	Insurance


	Memo 2023 Small Animal Collection Contract
	Humane Society Letter
	Contract

	EMS Billing Packet.pdf
	EMS Billing Contract Memo
	LifeQuest Proposal.pdf
	1453_001
	1454_001
	1455_001
	1456_001
	1457_001
	1458_001
	1459_001
	1460_001
	1461_001
	1462_001

	Fort Atkinson EMS Billing Request for Proposals

	Public Monument Review 
	Memo Kayak Launch
	Plan Commission Memo
	Application
	Dakota Friend - Eagle Project


	12.6.22 Council Packet - Digester Blower Replacement.pdf
	12.6.22 Council Memo Digester Blower Replacement and Repair 2022.pdf
	Service Order SEO-22-005133-0.pdf
	Service Order SEO-22-005132-0.pdf
	PO Digester #2 spare blower.pdf
	PO Delta Equipment.pdf

	Septage Pump #1 and Pumping Replacement 
	Septage Pump #1 and Piping Replacement Memo
	Staab Proposal
	Sabel Quote
	William/Reid Quote
	Watson/Marlow Quote
	Plans


	CSM Packet.pdf
	309 Bluff St. CSM Memo
	Plan Commission Memo
	Application
	2022-10-11 CSM for review.pdf
	2188360cs
	2188360sc
	2188360oc






